
9/8/2016 PC Minutes 
Page 1 of 3 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG – Chairman Goldberg called the meeting to
order at 6:30 p.m. in Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag.

2. ROLL CALL – Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, and Commissioners Lee Heinmiller,
Brenda Josephson, Larry Geise (via telephone), Don Turner III, Heather Lende.
Absent: Rob Miller.
Staff Present: Jan Hill, Mayor, Bill Seward, Borough Manager; Brad Ryan, Facilities
Manager; Shawn Bell, Harbor Master; Holly Smith, Borough Planner; and Kathryn Friedle,
Interim Planning and Zoning Technician.

Also Present: Paul Nelson; Carol Tuynman; Joe Parnell; Mike Case; Emily Files; John
Stang; Bill McCord; Mike Denker; Steve Cunningham; Evelyna Vignola; Steve
Cunningham; Greg Seymour, Tresham Gregg; Tom Morphet; Jean Pullanco; Jerry
Ballaneo; Ellen Larson; Leonard Dubber; Margaret Friedenhauer; Fred Einsbrook;

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion Turner moved to amend agenda to move harbor discussion to beginning of agenda
items and Heinmiller seconded. The motion carried unanimously.
Motion: Turner moved to “approve the agenda as amended.” Josephson seconded it. The
motion carried unanimously.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.

Motion: Heinmiller moved to “approve the August 11, 2016 minutes,” and Turner
seconded it. The motion carried unanimously.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  - Carol Tuynman commented on the role of the planning commission
in general. Pleased that Ryan is Facilities Director, but need the PC to have public 
meetings on the CIP process, enforcement, and public education, which will reduce conflict. 
Tom Morphet suggests creating code that mandates public comment or public vote when 
CIP project cost is at a certain dollar amount. Fred Einsbrook commented on the general 
procedure of CIP projects, that they should be aesthetically pleasing. Steve Cunningham 
thanked the planning commission for serving and thanked the audience for coming. 

6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
Goldberg thanked Kathy Freidle for helping to staff the planning commission during the
last six months and congratulated her on her retirement from the borough.

7. STAFF REPORTS
A. Planning & Zoning Staff Report

Holly Smith reported the number of permits issued and ongoing projects. 

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. Other New Business

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 8, 2016 
MINUTES  Draft 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 4



9/8/2016 PC Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

1. Land Use Permit: Portage Cove Harbor Expansion – Discussion Item - A
land use permit had been approved by the borough; although not required under
code, this topic was up for public comment.

Topics of discussion included future funding for floats and slips, moving Lookout
Park, the Sportfish ramp, the steel wave barrier, and future uses of the newly
created uplands area.
Future Funding - Concerns were expressed that the existing funds would only
pay to build the wave barrier and fill the uplands area, and that future
maintenance cost could be high.  Manager Seward said that grant funds were
being used to build the first phase, and that additional funding would be sought
from the federal government to complete the project.  He said it is not uncommon
for projects to proceed with partial funding in place.  Concerns were raised that
the harbor would operate at a deficit, but it was pointed out that none of the
services the borough provides pays for itself with user fees.  It was suggested
that the Borough change the Charter wording about enterprise funds, and that a
cost-benefit analysis of the project be done.
Lookout Park - There was general agreement that moving Lookout Park to a
place at the southeast corner of the new uplands area is a good idea.  Brad Ryan
said that funding was available to do this.
Sportfish Ramp - The Alaska Dept. of Fish and Game is willing to put up $3 to 5
million for the sportfish ramp.  There are parking requirements that come along
with this grant, and these requirements are dictating the size of the uplands
parking area.

Wave Barrier - There was discussion about the harbor substrate being too soft
to allow the extension of the existing rubble mound breakwater.  The steel wave
barrier is the only affordable option.  A question was asked about the possibility
of 1% for the arts funding.  Decorative steel designs could be added to the top of
the wave barrier to make it more attractive.

Uplands Area - There was much discussion about future uses of this area, and
how much should be used for parking, green space or parks.  It was decided that
a workshop will be held soon with the Planning Commission, the Parks and Rec
committee and the Harbor Aesthetics committee.  Date to be announced.
Motion:  Josephson moved to "Recommend to the Assembly or Manager that
the bid opening be delayed 30 days." Lende seconded. The motion passed 5-1
with Turner voting no.  Thereafter, Manager Seward immediately extended the
bid opening.

2. Temporary Use in the Commercial Zone — Discussion Item – This issue is
being addressed by a committee formed by Mayor Hill.  They will
suggest revised Code language to the planning commission.

3. Classification of Borough Lands for Sale – Discussion Item – Foreclosure
on property in Chilkat Acres (lots 35-37) has been finalized and deeded to the 
Haines Borough. 
Motion: Heinmiller moved to to "Classify Chilkat Acres Lots 35, 36 and 37 for 
sale as one lot, vacating the lot lines to create one larger parcel."  The motion 
passed 6-0.  



9/8/2016 PC Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

. 
Good had no further information to add to his request for a CUP to build a guest house. 

Lende questioned possible gravesites on the hillside of Good’s property.  Good 
reported he had not seen any gravesites, but appreciated being aware of them.  
Goldberg closed the public hearing at 6:55 p.m. 

Motion: Turner moved to “grant the conditional use permit for the construction of a 
guest house on Clay Good’s property,” and Geise seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

9. Commissioners Comments
Lende expressed disappointment that the harbor expansion was not similar to the 3A
concept published in the Comprehensive Plan, which is what the community agreed upon.
Lende also commented that there has not been enough public and planning commission
input in the process. Josephson agreed.

Goldberg notified the commission of his possible absence during the next regular meetings
and workshops.  Heinmiller affirmed that he would be available to step in if needed.

11. SET MEETING DATES
A.  Regular Meeting — Thursday, June 9, 2016 6:30 p.m.

12. ADJOURNMENT– 10:33 p.m.



Staff Report for October 13, 2016 
1. Permits Issued Since August 2, 2016

PERMIT DATE OWNER/AGENT TAX ID LOT BLK SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT ZONE 
16-65 9/13/16 Kelly Jessup C-WES-0A-0300 3 Water / Sewer ILC 16-65 
16-66 9/15/16 Andrew Shaw 1-HHY-07-1200 USS 2896 Short Plat GU 16-66 
16-67 9/16/16 Eric Forster C-PTC-0L-0500 5 L Deck extention and shed SSA 16-67 
16-68 9/20/16 Haines Borough Preschool Addition C-MIS-0K-0100 1-4 K Preschool addition to Senior Center C 16-68 
16-69 9/21/16 Randy Katzenmeyer C-ALL-01-0200 2 1 Driveway Extension SR 16-69 
16-70 9/29/16 Patricia Brown C-207-TL-1920 US 207 New Water SR 16-70 

2. Planner’s Projects August-October 2016

PROJECT 
SCOPE / 
TIMELINE DESCRIPTION 

Phase I: 911 Addressing Complete 250 addresses still need to be created, but system is ready to be launched 
Map for Sheldon Cultural 
Center Complete Townsite map for children’s interactive exhibit 
Learning HBC 6 Months Familiarizing myself with Title 18 and other parts of HBC – ongoing 
Coastal Management 
Revisions Review 1 Month Research Matsu, Skagway, and Dillingham Integration 
ROW of FAA Road / Braaten 
Property ? BLM confirms they do not own ROW and thinks it is owned by Bowough, but waiting to hear from State 
Comp Plan Review: Action 
Summary 2 Months 

Phase I Markup of Action Summary Underway – Results from phase I on Oct 18 – then Sheinberg Associates for Phase II, which 
involves Assembly and Public Review. 

Heli-Ski Map Revisions 1 Week Requested from Manager 2 weeks ago; working through GIS data 
GIS Needs Assessment 2 Weeks Imagery, parcel viewer, linking plats, updating/fixing parcels, addressing, updating shapefiles 
Property Descriptions Ongoing For borough lands, utilities, borough wireless project 

Broadband RFP 1 month 
Create a draft RFP designed to ensure the borough receive faster, more affordable broadband from an internet service 
provider 

Community Development 
Block Grant 1 month An opportunity to apply for a development project grant in a lower income area(s). Application due December 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 7A1



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 1/38 

Greetings_____________, 

As you likely know, the Assembly wishes to update the Haines 2025 Comprehensive Plan Action 
Summary. 

They need your help to do this. 

Attached please find an excerpt from the Action Summary with the parts most relevant to your 
department. (Substitute committee for department as relevant) 

Between now and _________, please mark this up as follows: 

1. For the Goals(s)
Is the goal still relevant? Note any changes you recommend. 

2. For the Objectives and Actions
Please mark each with a “D”, “NA”, or “K” for: 
D = Done 
NA = No longer applicable or relevant 
K = Keep 

3. After you have marked up the Objectives and Actions, please list any objectives or actions
that you recommend including. 

4. Finally, to assist with strategic planning, what are your department’s deferred maintenance
or important CIP needs? For each, please state a cost estimate and the timeframe that this will be 
needed within (1-2 years, 2-5 years, or 6-10 years). If you already have a prepared list like this, feel 
free to submit/use it instead of creating something new. 

On behalf of the Assembly, thank you for your help with the Borough’s Strategic Planning process. 

If you have any questions, please email or call me! 

Holly 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 7A2



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 2/38 

1. Quality of Life
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+
Responsibility RATING

Goal 1.  Sustain the Quality of Life that Haines residents rate as Excellent, based on the: 
1. Outdoors and natural beauty;
2. Small town atmosphere and community;
3. Presence of family and friends;
4. Safety and low crime; and

Abundant hunting and fishing opportunities. 

Goal still relevant?    
Recommendations: 

Objective 1A: Recognize that Quality of Life is a factor that keeps residents living in 
Haines and draws businesses and residents to the area. D NA K 

1. Evaluate the potential effect of projects and actions on 
Quality of Life. X X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 3/38 

2. Haines Borough Government
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 2.  Ensure that communication among the Borough, citizens and various land managers is clear. Work to 
foster productive and mutually beneficial relationships. 

Goal still relevant?    
Recommendations: 

Objective 2A: Continue to conduct local government operations in an open and transparent 
manner. Enhance engagement by periodically conducting less formal outreach events at 
different venues than the Assembly Chambers. Provide up-to-date easily accessible 
information to the public. 

D NA K 

1. Continue to provide public notice in a timely manner.
X X X Borough D NA K 

2. Continue to keep Borough website up-to-date with Assembly,
Planning Commission and other committee meeting notices, 
agendas, and minutes. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

3. After election of the new Assembly each year, schedule a half to
one-day retreat to discuss priorities. X X X 

Borough 
D NA K 

4. E Assess outreach to ensure it is responsive to the changing needs of
citizens and to the continuous evolution of the technology 
available to meet those needs. (i.e., Twitter, Facebook, regular 
posting of meetings and packets somewhere out Haines Highway, 
in Excursion Inlet, etc.) 

X X X 

Borough D NA K 

5. Determine whether Neighborhood Associations would be an 
effective way to provide direct and continuing citizen participation 
in local government; if so facilitate creation. 

X 
Borough D NA K 

6. Occasionally host less formal outreach and engagement efforts to
encourage a diversity of public contact, such as Open Houses or 
Town Meetings, “Coffee with the Mayor” or “Coffee with the 
Manager” or a table to “Visit with the Assembly,” at other public 
events. 

X X X 

Borough D NA K 

7. Keep Borough website up-to-date with latest documents,
information, statistics and data to allow easy access for local grant 
writing and funding opportunities. 

X X X Borough, 
Chamber 

D NA K 

Objective 2B:  Systematically evaluate competing funding demands when setting community 
priorities. Then, systematically implement priorities. D NA K 

1. Establish criteria to help guide decisions on which capital projects to
pursue and fund. X Assembly, Manager D NA K 

2. Systematically address deferred maintenance at Borough facilities.
Identify which facilities should be repaired and which have 
outlived their useful life. For those that should be repaired, 
identify priorities for repair now, what can wait 2-5, or 10 years. 

X X X Facilities, Manager 
D NA K 

Objective 2C:  Advance the interests of the community and residents by maintaining a working 
relationship with tribal governments, state and federal agency representatives, and public 
landowners within the Borough. 

D NA K 

1. Meet bi-annually with Chilkoot Indian Association (CIA) and Chilkat
Indian Village (CIV) to discuss plans, project development needs, 
and priorities.. 

X X X Borough, 
CIA, CiV D NA K 

2. Seek opportunities for Borough, CIA, and CIV to team since municipal 
and tribal governments have access to different funding. X X X Borough, 

CIA, CiV D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 4/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

3. Reach out regularly and maintain communication with local and
regional federal and state agency representatives that have 
regulatory oversight over Haines resources or can provide funding 
for Haines projects. 

X X X 
Borough D NA K 

Objective 2D:  Review current and future land use plans and projects proposed by state and 
federal landowners/managers within the Haines Borough to identify opportunities or areas of 
concern, or inconsistency with the Haines Comprehensive and other adopted Borough Plans. 
Cross reference with Land Use 5H. Refer to 5H (1-4) for implementing actions. 

D NA K 

Objective 2E:  Promote a strong, positive Haines image within and outside of Haines among 
specific target publics that are vital to the community’s economic well-being. Refer to 3D(1-2) 
for related implementing actions. 

D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 5/38 

3. Economic Development
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 3.  Achieve a strong, diversified local economy that provides employment and income for all citizens that 
desire to work while protecting the health of the environment and quality of life.  Build on local assets and 
competitive advantages to create economic opportunity. 
Goal still relevant?    
Recommendations: 

Objective 3A:  Attract and retain Location-Neutral workers, income earners, and business 
owners to Haines (i.e. Kensington or Greens Creek workers, internet based jobs and 
businesses, artists and writers, retirees). 

D NA K 

1. Conduct a survey to learn which community assets attract Haines’s
Location-Neutral workers, income earners and business owners 
to Haines and what causes them to leave. 

X Borough, 
Chamber 

D NA K 

2. Based on survey results, take action to fill identified gaps and 
develop a marketing plan that highlights assets that bring these 
individuals to Haines. (For example, actions might include 
business incubator that provides office space, business machines, 
possible staff, etc.). 

X X 
Borough, 
Chamber D NA K 

Objective 3B:  A Maintain and enhance subsistence resources and opportunities for all 
citizens. D NA K 

1. Represent Haines as a rural community before state and federal
subsistence boards and commissions to ensure continued 
subsistence access and use by all community residents. 

X X X 
CIA, 

Klukwan 
Borough 

D NA K 

2. Identify areas that are heavily used for subsistence and
recreational fishing, crabbing, and shrimping and pursue 
designation by the State Board of Fisheries as non- 
commercial areas (e.g. the Chilkat Inlet northwest of 
Glacier Point). 

X 
Borough, Haines 
Local Advisory 

Committee 
D NA K 

Objective 3C:  Add value to local commercial fisheries and to commercial fishing/seafood 
processing activity.  Refer to Transportation 4B (1-4) for objective and actions specific to Portage Cove Small Boat Harbor 
expansion.

D NA K 

1. Support local organizations and businesses working to increase
value-added processing. X X Chamber, JEDC, 

SEC D NA K 

2. Identify and prioritize infrastructure needed to increase spending of
commercial fleet on vessel and gear storage, repair, and 
maintenance in Haines. 

X Borough, 
P&HAC, Haines 

fishing fleet 
D NA K 

3. Encourage development of a Marine Industrial Park with lease lots
or rental space; good sites would be the Chilkat Cruises area, 
tankfarm site now decommissioned at the Old Haines 
Highway/Beach Street intersection, or near Lutak Dock or 
Chilkoot Lumber dock. 

X 
Borough,  

P&HAC, Chamber, 
fleet 

D NA K 

4. Increase use of Borough’s icehouse by fleet.
X 

P&HAC, Borough, 
fleet D NA K 

5. Determine if a cold storage where processors and individuals could
lease product space would encourage local value-added sales and 
processing. If so, conduct cost/benefit analysis and determine 
appropriate size. 

X X 
P&HAC, fleet D NA K 

6. Support youth voc-ed training and internships that reduce barriers
for young people to enter commercial fishing, such as business 
and accounting skills, small engine repair, and welding. 

X X Haines Schools, 
Ocean Beauty, 

fleet 
D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 6/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

7. Work with agency and other professional limnologists and fisheries
biologists to restore Chilkoot and Chilkat Lake sockeye runs to 
historic levels of productivity.  
cross reference with Land Use 6 A (7)

X X Borough,  
ADF&G, CIA, CIV, 

fleet, TWC 
D NA K 

8. Work with the ADNR to designate key salmon producing drainages
in the Haines State Forest for extended rotation length to 
promote fish production. 

X Borough, ADNR, 
ADF&G D NA K 

9. M Maintain or enhance fish habitat within special management
zones 300 feet on either side of anadromous fish streams and 
500 feet from anadromous fish bearing lakes (state forest rules). 
cross reference with Land Use 6 A (8)

X X X Borough, ADNR, 
ADF&G D NA K 

Objective 3D:  Capitalize on Haines’ existing reputation and ‘brand’ as a recreation 
destination and “Adventure Capital of Alaska” by expanding related businesses, jobs and 
commerce. 

D NA K 

1. Continue to support a diversity of Haines Borough marketing efforts 
that promote and celebrate these qualities, including re-initiation 
of the “Move to Haines” campaign and targeted marketing to 
cruise ships, about Haines festivals, and winter recreation. 

X X X 
Borough, 

HCVB, Chamber D NA K 

2. Continue efforts to increase cruise ships visits per week, such as
building relationships with key cruise line representatives in 
Alaska and elsewhere; outreach to shore representatives; and 
hosting occasional community events for crew such as 
appreciation barbeques, guided hikes, soccer games and other 
events to allow crew members to get a sense of the Haines 
community. 

X X 

Borough, 
HCVB, Chamber D NA K 

3. Develop a winter recreation marketing and outreach program.
X Chamber, HCVB, 

Chamber D NA K 

4. Provide certainty for both businesses and residents by preparing a
heli-ski management plan that addresses safety, neighborhood 
quality, heliports, routes and areas of use, monitoring, quality 
experience etc. Don’t re-invent the wheel; build on existing 
permits and decisions. 

X 

Borough D NA K 

5. Support continued fast shuttle ferry service between Haines and 
Skagway. X X X Borough, local 

businesses D NA K 

6. Develop a continuous multi-use path along Lutak/Portage Cove
from AMHS ferry terminal to Nukdik Pt. to Portage Cove State 
Recreation Site to Battery Point. Path should link Picture Point’s 
new picnic and viewing area with parking and interpretative 
signage, the small boat harbor, Lookout Park, Tlingit Park and 
Playground, a developed (but natural) beach access and path 
between Lookout Park and Port Chilkoot Dock, Port Chilkoot 
Dock restroom facilities, and Portage Cove Campground and 
Recreation site. Restore public access to Portage Cove on 
Borough land near Lighthouse Restaurant.
Cross reference with Land Use 8A (1)

X X X 

Borough, 
ADOT&PF D NA K 

7. M In addition to Adventure Capital of Alaska, develop a secondary
marketing theme that captures Haines’ sense of community, 
which visitors notice and highly prize (2011 Cruise Ship Survey). 
Highlight Haines’ unique small-town character in advertising and 
public relations activities. 

X 

Chamber, HCVB, 
Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 7/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Objective 3E:  Continue to implement the 2011 Downtown Haines Revitalization Plan. D NA K 
1. Define the Downtown Business District (DBD).

X 

Borough, DRVC, 
Chamber, 

business owners 

D NA K 
2. Determine best way to empower Downtown Revitalization 

Committee (DRVC). Give it specific tasks and implement its 
findings. 

X 
D NA K 

3. Promote infill of empty lots and buildings in DBD. Identify reasons
why businesses locate elsewhere, and identify a suite of 
acceptable incentives to encourage businesses to locate in DBD 
into vacant buildings or empty parcels (e.g. temporary reduction 
in property taxes, utility rates, or other business fees linked to 
location in DBD, investments in building construction, upgrades, 
etc.). 

X X X 

D NA K 

4. Build on spontaneous efforts and develop programs to encourage 
temporary window displays and uses for empty buildings in DBD. X X X D NA K 

5. Build on spontaneous efforts and support creation of murals
throughout DBD by supplying paint. X X X D NA K 

6. Create a Building & Facade Improvement grant program for DBD.
X X D NA K 

7. Integrate the new wayfaring signage with a new walking map and 
maps on promotional websites. X HCVB, DRVC, 

business owners D NA K 

8. Increase visibility of routes and ease of access to DBD; relocate and 
improve highway and directional signs to point people and 
vehicles to – rather than bypass - Main Street (for example, the 
sign at 2nd and Union now specifically directs highway traffic to 
bypass downtown).  
Cross reference with Transportation 4F(8)

X X Borough, HCVB, 
DRVC, Chamber, 
business owners, 

ADOT&PF 

D NA K 

9. Strengthen walking and visual links to Sheldon Museum from Front
Street. Create visual landmark at intersection of Front Street and 
Main Street (e.g., totem pole, flags, sculpture, other) 

X X Borough, HAC, 
Sheldon Museum, 

Lighthouse 
Restaurant 

D NA K 

10. Widen Main Street sidewalks and provide pedestrian amenities
that encourage lingering, window-shopping that become 
shopping, and promotes vitality. Partnership with ADOT&PF 
required (or street acquisition). 

X Borough, 
ADOT&PF, DRVC. 

Chamber, 
business owners 

D NA K 

11. Provide business education, research, and training for business
owners to promote success. X DRVC, Chamber D NA K 

12. Support Buy Local, Eat-Local, Tax-Free days, planned events, and 
similar promotions that bring residents and visitors to downtown 
to make local purchases.

X X X 

Borough, DRVC, 
Chamber, 

business owners 

D NA K 

13. Establish metrics defining economic conditions in DBD and 
identify indicators to use to evaluate and measure result of 
incentives program and changing conditions. (see Haines 
Downtown Revitalization Plan) 

X X X 
D NA K 

Objective 3F:  Strengthen entrepreneurial activity and businesses. Provide entrepreneurs 
with the resources that will enable them to develop and expand their businesses D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 8/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

1. Identify and work to address infrastructure and services that meets
entrepreneur’s needs. For example, it has been suggested that 
there is a need for a functioning (winterized, bathrooms, running 
water) downtown Office Building with offices for rent, possibly 
with shared business services available. Formally investigate 
demand and if it exists, identify options to satisfy, including 
public investment or incentives, private-public partnerships, etc. 
see similar objective at 2E 

X 

DRVC, Borough, 
business owners, 

Chamber 
D NA K 

2. Enact a low-interest small-loan program for businesses in Haines
(establish goals, terms, loan criteria, other). X X 

Borough, CIA D NA K 

3. Periodically provide entrepreneurship education classes to sow the 
seeds of economic diversification. X 

Chamber, JEDC D NA K 

4. Provide regular customer service training for front-line employees
at start of every summer. X X X Business owners, 

Chamber, HCVB D NA K 

5. Update Haines economic indicators every two years to maintain
current on understanding of economy, business diversity and 
interdependencies, leading industries, employment, wages, 
personal income, and local revenue to track changes and 
measure result of efforts. 

X X 
Borough, 
Chamber D NA K 

Objective 3G:  Haines Borough residents need access to reliable, fast, and affordable internet 
as this increasingly is a necessity for business, education, and services. Cross reference with Utilities 
Objective 15 J

D NA K 

1. M Pursue grant and other opportunities to provide internet access
to rural areas; make current Open Skies (starband) program for 
rural Alaska known to citizens. 

X X X Borough, 
Chamber D NA K 

2. M Work with cell service and internet providers, regulators,
Southeast Conference, and others to inventory infrastructure, 
coverage, gaps and rates in Borough. Collaborate on ideas to fill 
gaps and address needs. 

X X Borough, SEC, 
cell/internet 

providers, USDA- 
RD, DCCED, RCA 

D NA K 

Objective 3H:  AObjective 3H: Haines Borough should work with local electric utilities to 
achieve a rate of 15 cents per KwH or lower. Support actions to reduce power, heating, and 
fuel costs. Cross reference with Utilities Objective 15 L. Also review Utilities Objectives 15 K, L and M and 
implementing actions for full review of Power

D NA K 

1. Identify any actions that could lower rates. Focus on opportunities
to benefit commercial and industrial users. Cross reference with 
Utilities 15 L( 1) 

X X Borough, AP&T, 
RCA D NA K 

Objective 3I:  Maintain a business-friendly regulatory environment by providing stable local 
tax rates, reasonable permit fees, and timely permit reviews. D NA K 

1. Study the costs and benefits for requiring a Borough business
license in addition to a state license. If costs exceed benefits, 
eliminate. 

X 
Borough D NA K 

2. Examine the effectiveness of the Borough Tour Permit system.
X Borough D NA K 

3. Provide for internet based sales tax reporting/return program.
X Borough D NA K 

Objective 3J:  A Capitalize on Haines’s position as a transportation hub to increase transfer and 
shipment of cargo, supplies, fuel, and other commodities with the Yukon, northern British 
Columbia, and Interior Alaska. Cross reference with Transportation 4(A) D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 9/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

1. Ensure that Haines Highway and its bridges are capable and 
certified to handle load/weights necessary to transport ore, LNG 
and similar loads to and from Yukon, northern British Columbia, 
and interior Alaska. a) Identify current load certification of 
Haines Highway and Bridges. b) Identify industrial load roads 
must bear. c) Upgrade and recertify as needed, including 
allocating funding to accomplish. 

X X X 
Borough, 

ADOT&PF, 
commodity 

producers, State 
Legislators 

D NA K 

2. Actively market Haines port and highway facilities and capacities.
X X X 

Borough, 
Chamber D NA K 

3. Prepare Port Development Plan (Identify transshipment
opportunities for which Haines is competitive, estimate revenue 
and jobs to community, risks, and identify infrastructure, 
marketing and other investments needed to capture increased 
market share by Haines Borough and private partners). 

X Borough, Port 
Steering 

Committee, 
Chamber 

D NA K 

4. Based on Port Development Plan’s recommendations, identify
decision-making sequence, strategic investments and funders, 
and timeline. Take systematic action. 

X X Borough, Port 
Steering 

Committee, 
Chamber 

D NA K 

5. Investigate options, pros and cons, to meet Yukon Liquid Natural
Gas (LNG) transshipment demand. X X Borough D NA K 

6. Identify measures to avoid or minimize impacts from industrial truck 
traffic along Highway to Lutak Dock (e.g., noise, operation of 
engine brakes, routes, hours of operation, etc.). 

X 
Borough D NA K 

7. Work with the Haines School District to strengthen its construction 
and building trades program, and with Alaska Workforce 
Development to heighten awareness of training programs for the 
construction and building trades. 

X X X Borough, Haines 
Schools, 

construction 
businesses 

D NA K 

8. Continue to request that federal tank farm uplands, waterfront, and 
dock be conveyed to the Haines Borough by BLM following the 
tank farm site cleanup. If the Borough is not able to acquire this 
land, work with CIA or other new landowner to secure public 
access and to encourage cooperation to enhance public use and 
access. 

X X X 

Borough, CIA, 
BLM D NA K 

Objective 3K:  A Increase number of family households with children under 18 over next 
decade by at least 10% (28 more households) Cross reference with Community Services 
Objective 17 F and refer to 17 E for implementing actions 1-6 

D NA K 

Objective 3L:  A Sustain, promote, and selectively expand services and amenities for retirees 
and seniors. Cross reference with Community Services Objective 17 D and implementing 
actions 1-9 

D NA K 

Objective 3M:  Objective 3M: Continue sustained yield timber harvest from Haines State 
Forest, increase value-added wood and forest product use, support use of local wood for 
biomass heating. 

D NA K 

1. Increase recognition of Haines wood-related businesses and 
activity. Advocate recognition of, and then participate in, regional 
economic efforts to foster Forest Products Economic Cluster in 
northern southeast Alaska. 

X X X 

Sawmill owner, 
value-added 

wood business 
owner, CIA, 

ADNR, JEDC, SEC 

D NA K 

2. Support continued small negotiated sales and small timber sales.
X X X Borough, ADNR 

D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 10/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

3. Encourage value-added wood product businesses, such as but not
limited to firewood, sawmills, biomass, finished wood products, 
pellet production, etc. X X X 

Borough, 
Chamber, ADNR, 

CIA 
D NA K 

4. Designate state’s “Operable Forest” on Future Growth Maps4 as
Resource Development or Multiple-Resource Use Emphasis. X Borough D NA K 

Objective 3N:  Develop economically viable mineral deposits in a manner that complies with 
environmental regulations, protects fishery resources of the Chilkat and Chilkoot River 
systems, and promotes local hire. Conditions may be placed on permits to promote 
compatibility with adjacent land uses. 
For land use actions related to mineral development see Goal 10, Objective 10 A, actions 1-3. 

D NA K 

1. Support assessment of infrastructure needs and options, including
non-diesel based power sources that could facilitate mineral 
development in the Borough. X Borough D NA K 

2. Designate major mineral deposits on Future Growth Maps as
Resource Development Designation. X Borough D NA K 

Objective 3O:  Increase the economic contribution from Haines’s historical, cultural and arts 
related organizations, assets, and services. D NA K 

1. Complete deferred maintenance and upgrades at the Chilkat
Center for the Performing Arts. Cross reference with Community 
Services 17 A (2) 

X X X 
Borough D NA K 

2. Increase marketing efforts Chilkat Center for the Performing Arts to
get higher use and revenue from local and traveling performers 
and for conferences. Assign marketing the Center as an identified 
duty of the HCVB (or other entity). Set goals for use and track 
progress. Cross reference with Community Services 17 B (1) 

X X X 
Borough, HCVB D NA K 

3. Develop classes and programs for the visual arts for locals and 
visitors. Cross reference with Education 18 A (2) X X X 

Haines Arts 
Council, Haines 

Schools 
D NA K 

4. Install handicap access to the Sheldon Museum and Cultural
Center, repair foundation to prevent basement flooding, replace 
windows to improve energy efficiency and maintain a controlled 
building climate. Cross with Community Services 17 A (1) 

X X 
Borough, Sheldon 

Museum D NA K 

5. Reestablish Dalton Trail and promote all season multi-use. Add
interpretative signage and establish remote campsites. Cross 
reference with Land Use 9 A (3) 

X X CVHS,  ADNR, 
HCVB, 
PRAC, 

Commercial tour 
providers  

D NA K 

6. Add space at Sheldon Museum and Cultural Center for collection 
storage, archival material, exhibits, staff work area, and a 
classroom. Cross reference with Community Svs 17 B (6) 

X X Borough, Haines 
Schools D NA K 

7. Support committees working to acquire historically or culturally
significant properties such as the Anway Cabin and Eldred Rock 
Lighthouse. Identify additional funding increments needed 
(possible funding sources: Borough, grants, sales, etc.) as part of 
acquisitions to maintain, operate and market new assets. Cross 
reference with Community Svs 17 B( 7) 

X X X 

Borough, Sheldon 
Museum, CVHS D NA K 

8. Have bi-annual joint meeting for key board and staff of Sheldon
Museum, Library, HCVB, DRVC, the Haines Arts Council, tour 
providers, CIA, and others to identify ways to collaborate on 
events, local and tourist visitation, and revenue generation.  
Cross reference with Community Svs 17 B (3) 

X X X 
Parties 
named D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 11/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

9. Define economic contribution (employment, wages, revenue with
multipliers) to Haines from arts and cultural businesses, 
organizations, and events. Cross reference with Community Svs 
17 B (8) 

X X 
Borough, Arts 

Council D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 12/38 

4. Transportation
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 4.  Provide a safe, convenient, reliable, and connected transportation network to move goods and people 
to, from, and within Haines Borough. Aggressively maintain road, port, and harbor facilities to maximize public 
investment, enhance public safety and access, and provide economic opportunity. 
Goal still relevant?  
Recommendations? 

Objective 4A:  Objective 4A: Capitalize on Haines’ position as a transportation hub to 
increase transfer and shipment of cargo, supplies, fuel, ore and other commodities with the 
Yukon, northern BC, and Interior Alaska. Cross reference with Econ Dev 3J and its 
implementing actions (1-8) which provide detail. 

D NA K 

1. Actively market Haines port and road network and facilities.
X X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 4B:  Improve harbor and marine facilities for resident use and to support 
commercial fishing activity. Also refer to Econ Dev Objective 3C & actions (1-9) about adding 
value to local commercial fisheries. 

D NA K 

1. Identify and prioritize infrastructure and maintenance needed to
support commercial fishing and seafood processing activity. 

X 

Borough, 
P&HAC, Haines 
fishers, seafood 

processors 

D NA K 

2. Conduct work session/public review to advance Portage Cove
Small Boat Harbor expansion (see pg 122) to final concept design 
(harbor, parking, park). X 

Planning 
Commission/ 
P&HAC, PRAC 

D NA K 

3. Conduct geotechnical drilling needed for accurate cost estimates 
and design of small boat harbor south wave barrier/ breakwater. X Borough D NA K 

4. Work with US COE, ADOT&PF and others to acquire full funding;
construct in phases if full funding not all available at onset. 
($19.5 million in CIP funding acquired in 2012 with $15 million of 
this contingent of state approval of bond package in fall 2012.) 

X X X 
Borough, P&HAC, 

State, COE D NA K 

Objective 4C:  Support Alaska Marine Highway System ferry service to and from Haines. D NA K 
1. Advocate for daily AMHS day boat service between Upper Lynn 

Canal communities and Juneau. X 
Borough, elected 

officials D NA K 

2. Advocate for the proposed Alaska Class ferry to serve the Upper
Lynn Canal. X 

Borough, elected 
officials D NA K 

3. Advocate for AMHS ferry to homeport or overnight in Haines.
X X 

Borough, elected 
officials D NA K 

Objective 4D:  Accomplish geotechnical investigations and surficial/ ground water flow 
improvements/redirection to address Lutak Slope ground movement. D NA K 

1. Conduct a comprehensive assessment of surface and ground water
flows and flow paths. Identify risk, options to improve stability of 
lower hillside (Oceanview Rd/Lutak slope and Road) and costs. 
Implement chosen solutions. 

X X 

Borough, 
ADOT&PF, 

USGS, DMVA, 
land 

owners 

D NA K 

Objective 4E:  Pro-actively address possibility of railroad between Port Lutak area, the Yukon 
Territory and Interior Alaska. D NA K 

1. Identify land and resource concerns, at a planning level, along the 
three routes that being discussed as options to identify issues 
important to the Borough that a future engineering or 
environmental study would need to address. X X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 13/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

2. Identify the route likely to be preferred (at a planning level) by
Haines Borough and rationale. X Borough D NA K 

3. Survey route from Lutak to Zimovia Point (just past 9 mile) where
a possible bridge would be built, to assess costs and feasibility 
so that Borough is positioned to assist State, Yukon 
Government, or other potential funders. This could be partially 
combined with action 4D (1). 

X X 

Borough, Yukon 
Govt, producers 
/ private sector, 

ADOT&PF 

D NA K 

4. Conduct preliminary engineering study to estimate construction 
costs and exit point for 3-mile tunnel from Lutak Dock to airport 
area for alternative truck or railroad route to Lutak Dock. X 

Borough, Yukon 
Govt, 

producers/priva
te sector, 
ADOT&PF 

D NA K 

Objective 4F:  Accomplish the Borough’s Transportation Improvement Program, including the 
36 road and non-motorized improvements projects listed on Table 6-5 and partially mapped 
on Figure 6-3. Build a connected, non-motorized transportation network (sidewalks, wide 
road shoulders, separated paths) to encourage healthy lifestyles and safe walking, biking, and 
skiing to and from work and school. 

D NA K 

1. Annually update and approve the Haines Borough Consolidated
Transportation Plan to enable continued receipt of public 
transportation services and funding, such as Senior Citizen 
transportation services. 

X X X Borough, CIA D NA K 

2. Aggressively pursue funding to systematically complete the 
Borough’s Transportation Improvement Program5 including the 
36 road and non-motorized improvements projects listed on 
Table 6-5 and partly mapped on Figure 6-3. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

3. Pave or chip seal roads in Haines Borough. Focus on Phase III-VI
Local Roads Program within the townsite and areas designated for 
Rural Settlement on Comprehensive Plan Future Growth Maps. X X X 

Borough, State, 
CIA D NA K 

4. Prepare Local Roads Program VII-X. 
X X Borough D NA K 

5. Maintain and expand public transportation services. Explore 
opportunities for coordination of services, shared resources and 
pay-per-ride options among van and bus owners in Haines. Assess 
public demand for year round transit service and routes and run 
feasibility analysis. 

X 

CIA, REACH, Inc., 
Senior Center, 
Borough, CIV, 

State HESS, ADNR, 
DPH & 

others w vans, 
Schools, SE Senior 
Services, Catholic 

Services 

D NA K 

6. Publicize and advertise existing transit services available for seniors,
other residents, and visitors. Place information on Borough 
website, on hainesak.com under “transportation”, on 
haines.ak.us, on flyers around town etc.  Also refer to Cm Svs 17 
D(4) and (8) 

X 

CIA, REACH, Inc., 
Senior Center, 

Borough 
D NA K 

7. More obvious and higher quality signage needed for tour season
transit service as well as printed routes and schedules to 
significantly improve this service. 

X 
Borough, Transit 

contractor D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 14/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

8. Increase visibility of routes and ease of access to DBD; relocate and 
improve highway and directional signs to point people and 
vehicles to – rather than bypass - Main Street (for example, the 
sign at 2nd and Union now specifically directs highway traffic to 
bypass downtown). Cross reference with Econ Dev 3E (8) 

X X 
Borough, 
ADOT&PF D NA K 

9. Systematically implement the Haines Highway Scenic Corridor
Partnership Plan. Cross reference with Parks and Rec 14E (11) 
which lists more details.  X X X 

ADOT&PF, 
Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 15/38 

5. Land Use & Future Growth
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 5.  A Guide infrastructure and land development to provide an adequate supply of land for commercial and 
industrial development, varied residential living, and diverse recreational opportunities. 

Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations? 

Objective 5A:  A Periodically assess the amount of undeveloped land available that is zoned 
for residential, commercial, and industrial purposes to ensure an adequate supply is 
available. 

D NA K 

1. Designate areas for future residential, commercial and industrial 
land use and update zoning as needed. X X X 

Planning 
Commission D NA K 

2. If land is in short supply, avoid scarcity by rezoning land, selling
Borough land, or working with public or private landowners to 
make land available for sale. X X X 

Planning 
Commission D NA K 

3. Facilitate orderly development by working with large 
landowners to prepare Master Development Plans that 
delineate buildable areas, areas with environmental 
constraints that impact development feasibility and cost, and 
identify access and utility routes. Focus on areas identified for 
future utility expansion on Figure 7-4. 

X X X 

Borough, AMHT, UA, 
private landowners 
with parcels greater 

than 20 acres, 
Planning 

Commission 

D NA K 

Objective 5B:  Assign highest priority land use/development in areas designated 
“Waterfront Development6” on the Future Growth Maps for water-dependent uses and 
activities, followed by water-related uses and activities. 

D NA K 

Objective 5C:  Site commercial and light industrial development in logical locations to 
promote economic opportunity, satisfy current and future needs, and concentrate these 
more intensive uses. 

D NA K 

1. Prevent future commercial sprawl and provide for local needs
by identifying and designating logical areas to locate and 
concentrate commercial use and business development on 
the Future Growth maps for out Haines Highway and in Mud 
Bay. Update zoning as needed. 

X X X 
Planning 

Commission D NA K 

Objective 5D:  Continue to implement the 2011 Downtown Haines Revitalization Plan 
Cross reference with Economic Development Objective 3E, implementing actions are at 3(E) 1-13 D NA K 

Objective 5E:  Non-recreation projects and activities in areas designated on Future 
Growth Maps for “Park, Recreation or Open Space” will be located, designed, constructed 
and operated to avoid or minimize adverse impact to recreational uses. See Park, 
Recreation, and Open Space chapter for related Goals, Objectives, and Actions. 

D NA K 

Objective 5F:  Support local agriculture, gardening, and food production. D NA K 
1. Support community gardens and greenhouses throughout the 

Borough. Make parcels of Borough land available for this use 
on a temporary basis for no fee. X X X 

Neighborhood 
Groups, SEARHC, 

Community Garden 
Group, Borough 

D NA K 

2. Encourage public events and business sales of locally produced
food of all types. X X X 

Chamber, 
SEARHC, Garden 

Club 
D NA K 

3. Ensure the zoning code promotes and allows food production.
X X X Borough D NA K 

4. Encourage agricultural use and leases in Haines State Forest.
X X X ADNR D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 16/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Objective 5G:  A Protect homeowner’s investments by minimizing adjacent incompatible 
land development. D NA K 

1. R To promote efficient land use, good neighbors, and protect
homeowner investments and lifestyles, require buffers 
between residential and non-residential land uses, between 
differing types/densities of residential development, or when 
home occupations or light approved commercial uses are 
adjacent. Depending on the situation common measures 
could be landscaping, retained or additional vegetation, 
setbacks, fences, sound barriers, restriction on hours of 
operation of noise- generating equipment or activity, control 
of traffic speeds, and requiring off-street parking. etc. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

2. R Organize meetings in General Use zoning areas where land 
use conflicts are occurring or likely to determine interest in 
more specific zoning. X X X 

Borough, 
land owners D NA K 

Objective 5H:  AReview current and future land use plans and projects proposed by state 
and federal landowners/managers within the Haines Borough to identify any areas of 
concern or inconsistency with the Haines Comprehensive and other adopted Borough Plans. 
Cross reference with Haines Borough Govt 2 D

D NA K 

1. Initiate consultation if inconsistent areas identified between 
state/federal and Borough plans. X X X Borough D NA K 

2. Initiate communication, and respond to inquiries, with AMHT
and UA on their land development proposals X X X Borough D NA K 

3. Ensure state (ADNR, ADOT&PF, ADF&G, UA, AMHT etc.) plans,
projects and operations along the Haines Highway are 
compatible with the Corridor Plan and objectives for this 
Scenic Byway. 

X X X Borough, State D NA K 

4. Provide input during the 5 year timber sale schedule review.
X X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 5I:  Update and unify Haines Borough codes and permitting. Development and 
permitting procedures must account for Borough’s regulatory obligations. D NA K 

1. Update and unify building permit requirements for properties
in Borough on road system. X Borough D NA K 

2. Update and unify Borough Zoning Code. (This does not mean
eliminating zones, rather, renaming and consolidating for 
uniformity and consistency.) X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 6.  Maintain and enhance salmon spawning, rearing, and overwintering habitat. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 
Objective 6A:  A Development along anadromous fish streams uses setbacks and best 
management practices to maintain natural water flow and water quality; reduce erosion; 
and maintain natural vegetation, fish passage and habitat. 

D NA K 

1. Enforce HBC 18.60.020 that requires a 25 foot no development
zone next to ADF&G catalogued anadromous streams, unless 
a variance is granted. X X X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 17/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

2. Clarify in code that a 25 foot no development setback adjacent
to catalogued anadromous streams applies borough-wide to 
all structures, regardless of whether a building or 
development permit is needed. 

X Borough D NA K 

3. Consolidate entry points to, and crossings of, anadromous fish 
streams (ATVs, rafts, boats) in order to minimize erosion and 
riparian habitat degradation. Accomplish this by working with 
individuals and businesses that regularly cross anadromous 
streams to identify logical stream crossing areas, then 
designate/advertise, develop parking if possible, and harden 
as appropriate. 

X X X 

PRAC, TWC, 
ADF&G, 

Tour Operators 
D NA K 

4. Actively Support Takshanuk Watershed Council culvert upgrade
and replacement program. X X X 

TWC, Borough, 
ADOT&PF D NA K 

5. Identify one or more area(s) to direct future mitigation dollars
and efforts to assist with future permitting and benefit the 
environment by focusing these efforts in a meaningful way. X X X 

Borough, TWC, 
ADF&G, COE, CIA , 
private landowners 

D NA K 

6. Stabilize and restore Chilkoot River trail. Cross reference with
Parks and Rec 14 E (10) X X D NA K 

7. Work with agency and other professional limnologists and 
fisheries biologists to restore Chilkoot and Chilkat Lake 
sockeye runs to historic levels of productivity. Cross reference 
with Econ Dev 3 C (7) 

X X 

Borough, ADF&G, 
CIA, CIV, Haines 

fishing fleet, TWC 
D NA K 

8. Maintain or enhance fish habitat within special management
zones 300 feet on either side of anadromous fish streams and 
500 feet from anadromous fish bearing lakes (state forest 
rules).  Cross reference with Econ Dev 3 C (10) 

X X X D NA K 

Objective 6B:  Enhance Sawmill Creek, adjacent wetlands, and One Mile Creek’s value for 
fish and wildlife habitat. D NA K 

1. Enforce 25 foot no development setback and work with private 
landowners to protect and improve Sawmill Creek and One 
Mile Creek’s fish habitat and wetland integrity. Identify areas 
on undeveloped and developed parcels that merit protection 
and couple with creation of neighborhood creekside 
amenity/path. Seek grants or establish incentives to 
accomplish. 

X X 

Borough, CIA, TWC, 
ADF&G, USFWS, 

landowners 
D NA K 

2. Facilitate Increased use of the Sawmill Creek corridor and 
McClellan Flats for recreation, outdoor education, and other 
low-intensity public uses. Prohibit use of off-road motorized 
vehicles here or designate paths for this use. Allow snow-
machine use if sufficient snow cover to protect the vegetation 
from damage and if landowner’s consent. In cooperation with 
private landowners, install signs and natural-looking blockades 
to stop off-road vehicle use. Educate the public about the 
reason for the motorized use closure. 

X X X 

Borough, CIA, TWC, 
ADF&G, USFWS, 

landowners 
D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 18/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 7.  Protect public drinking water quality. 

Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

1. Designate watershed and wellhead protection areas on Future
Growth Maps. Conduct site specific examination to define 
better as needed. X X Borough, ADEC D NA K 

2. Restrict activities in drinking water protection areas that could 
cause contamination. Be very cautious around Lily Lake, the 
primary community drinking water source. X X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 8.  Provide public access to coastal areas, rivers, and lakes. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 8A:  A Formalize access, manage areas, and provide infrastructure to improve 
public access and use of the Portage Cove waterfront, Lutak beaches and Tanani Pt, Chilkat 
River/ Carrs Cove beaches, Chilkoot River corridor, Chilkat Lake, Klehini River, and other 
coastal areas, rivers, and lakes important to Haines residents and visitors. 

D NA K 

1. Develop a continuous multi-use path along Lutak/Portage Cove
from AMHS ferry terminal to Nukdik Pt. to Portage Cove State 
Recreation Site to Battery Point. Path should link Picture 
Point’s new picnic and viewing area with parking and 
interpretative signage, the small boat harbor, Lookout Park, 
Tlingit Park and Playground, a developed - but natural - beach 
access and path between Lookout Park and Port Chilkoot 
Dock, Port Chilkoot Dock restroom facilities, and Portage Cove 
Campground and Recreation site. Restore public access to 
Portage Cove on Borough land near Lighthouse Bar. Cross 
reference with Econ Dev 3D (6) 

X X 
Borough, PRAC, 
P&HAC, State D NA K 

2. Enhance public access to river at 25 Mile. Provide formal river
access at Wells Bridge at 25 Mile along with restrooms, trails, 
a fishing area (summer), and in the winter set 14-mile cross 
country ski loop between here and Klukwan, and set snow 
machine trails. 

X X 

ADOT&PF, 
Borough, Ski Club, 

PRAC, ADF&G 
D NA K 

3. Designate Tanani Pt. access and adjacent beach along the Lutak
Road north of the town on Future Growth Map as Park, 
Recreation or Open Space (excluding Waterfront Development 
area), rezone as needed, and take actions necessary to 
maintain safe public use. 

X X Borough D NA K 

4. Designate natural trail along beach along Chilkat River between
Carr’s Cove and Jones Point and provide continued public use 
and coastal access (see Figures 7-4, 

         7-8, 8-1 and 8-2). Acquire ROW and easements and rezone as 
needed. Link to trails that connect to Sawmill Rd and 
Southeast Fairgrounds as depicted on Figure 8-1 to develop a 
connected non-motorized circle. Specifics: A) Carr’s Cove 
Beach Access/ Chilkat Beaches-Jones Pt. natural trail: Provide 
access to beach, bags to scoop dog poop, trashcans & pick-up, 
improve parking, and formalize beach trail from Carrs Cove to 
Jones Pt. Work with private landowners. B) Construct trail 
connecting beach to Southeast Fairgrounds, CIA Mitigation 
area, and Haines Hwy. Work with private landowners. C) 
Construct boardwalk/ education trail (potential mitigation 
project) from Jones Pt. to and along Sawmill Creek to Crystal 
Cathedral wellhead road. Work with private landowners. D) 
Build One Mile Creek trail, viewing area, beach access. 

X X Borough, PRAC D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 19/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

5. Maintain public access to Chilkat Lake and future trails as
depicted on Figure 8-3. Determine if road and trails used to 
access Chilkat Lake, including crossing points, and parking areas 
are platted and designated for permanent public access.  If not, 
remedy. 

X X ADNR, Borough D NA K 

6. Coordinate Haines Highway pullout development (per Highway
Scenic Corridor Plan and Figure 8-3) with ADOT&PF as future 
road improvements occur. All pullouts should be multi-
use/purpose and provide parking for people who want to look 
at scenery, take photos of eagles, or launch for a recreational 
activity. There should be breaks in guard rails at pullouts to 
facilitate recreational access to river.  Use expertise of Chilkat 
Guides and ADF&G to identify places in river for more 
“hardened” jet boat launch. If possible, identify and harden 
some jet boat launches (removable in winter) to consolidate 
this activity and associated riparian habitat wear and tear. 
Possible locations are at 10 Mile, 14 Mile, 19 Mile and 21 Mile 
Haines Highway. 

X X 

ADOT&PF, 
commercial tour 

providers, 
Borough, PRAC, 

ADF&G 

D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 9.  Protect and ensure development respects historic and cultural resources and values. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 9A:  Recognize that the following areas have important historic and cultural 
resources and values: 

1) Fort William H. Seward (an Historic District and a National Historic Landmark)
2) Deishu Village site
3) Tlingit Park and historic cemetery
4) T'anani Village Site and Nukdik/Tanani Beach site
5) Anway Homesite historic structure and property
6) Yandeist’akye’ historic Native settlement
7) Chilkat River and Chilkoot River and Lake historic sites such as cache and house pits,

hooligan pits, garden areas and graves
8) Dalton Cache and Dalton Trail
9) Eldred Rock Lighthouse

D NA K 

1. Protect historic and cultural sites and provide interpretation to
deepen understanding and appreciation for residents and 
visitors. X X X 

Sheldon Museum, 
CIA, CIV, others, 

CVHS 
D NA K 

2. Improve deteriorating building facades at Fort Seward, provide 
ongoing maintenance to historical and cultural signage around 
site, use landscaping to shield parking areas, and develop 
parking behind buildings rather than in front or side, and off of 
the Parade Grounds. 

X 
PCP, business 

owners, Borough D NA K 

3. Reestablish Dalton Trail and promote all season multi-use. Add
interpretative signage and establish remote campsites. Cross 
reference with Econ Dev 3O (5) X X X 

CVHS, PRAC, State, 
Commercial Tour 

providers 
D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 20/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 10.  Support responsible development of renewable and non-renewable resources within Haines Borough. 

Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 
Objective 10A:  Work with project developers and regulators to achieve responsible 
development, which is defined as complying with environmental regulations, ensuring 
fishery resource and riparian zone protection, providing protection of salmon habitat and 
Bald Eagle Preserve resources, maintaining scenic viewsheds, and buffering operations when 
needed to protect adjacent users and activities. Also see related objectives at Econ Dev 3(C, M, N) 
and 6(A) with implementing actions. 

D NA K 

1. Location of sand, gravel and rock extraction sites shall be
permitted in the following order of priority: 

a. Existing, approved upland sand and gravel pits;
b. Reuse of sand and gravel from abandoned development areas,

unless reuse would cause more environmental damage than 
non-use from the area;

c. New upland sites approved for the purpose; and
d. Streams that do not provide fish habitat.

X X X 
ADOT&PF, ADNR, 

Borough D NA K 

2. Where appropriate, couple sand and gravel extraction with 
salmon habitat improvement. X X X 

Private businesses, 
TWC, Borough D NA K 

3. Consolidate access to mineral exploration sites and mines with 
other access routes where feasible. X X X 

Borough, 
producers D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 11.  Promote compact development and infill where water and sewer infrastructure exists in order to 
maximize return on public infrastructure investments, promote energy efficiency, and reduce carbon emissions. 

Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 
Objective 11A:  Base decisions about utility extension on Borough costs, whether policy 
changes could instead result in infill, if willing Local Improvement District payers are present, 
and on landowner interests. 

D NA K 

1. Over time, extend roads as shown on Figure 6-3 and Table 6-5,
and, extend utilities to one or more areas shown on Figure 7-4, 
to facilitate residential development. X X X 

Borough, select 
property owners D NA K 

2. Evaluate possible roles for Borough to facilitate orderly utility
extension on private land, such as conducting engineering 
studies to accurately determine location, design, and LID costs; 
assisting to prepare or review Master Development Plans for 
large parcels;  or other. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 12.  Use Borough-owned land, a limited resource, to accomplish public goals. 

Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 12A:  Develop a Master Campus Plan on the 15-acre Borough-owned parcel that 
has the Library, Ax’ Shtudultoowo Daaka Hidi Park (next to library), school and gym/track, 
and Borough Administration Building. A Master Plan will allow Borough to make informed 
decisions about area land disposal and acquisition. 

D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 21/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

1. Master Plan should: designate places where, over time, other
Borough and community facilities will be located. Consolidate 
facilities and share space where possible. Identify locations for 
paths that will eventually be lighted and landscaped to connect 
facilities and provide a way for walkers and cyclists to access 
the school, Borough Offices and get across town. Identify the 
location for a “destination” open space and gathering area in a 
town square like setting on a portion of the campus that can 
host summer Farmer’s Markets, spillover events from the 
Southeast State Fair, Downtown celebrations etc. This would be 
a natural location for public and school employees to have a 
picnic lunch on nice days year-round. A well–positioned mixed-
use building with some ground floor retail space that attracts 
people and commerce on weekdays, weekends and evenings 
will add to the adjacent Downtown Business District. 

X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 12B:  Prepare a Haines Borough land management plan to systematically address 
Borough land acquisition and disposal. D NA K 

1. Elements of plan to include: Identify goals and purposes of
owning, using and disposing of Borough land. Identify (map) 
Borough land. Identify Borough land needed for future 
municipal needs. Identify suitable purposes (Future Growth 
designations) for land not needed for municipal purposes. 
Identify general considerations/costs and benefits of Borough 
land disposal and timing (local markets etc.) 

X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 

Goal 13.  Communicate and work with public landowners within Haines Borough to ensure their land 
development and use is compatible with adopted Borough Plans. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations? 
Objective 13A:  Review current and future land use plans and projects proposed by state 
and federal landowners/ managers within the Haines Borough to identify any areas of 
concern or inconsistency with the Haines Comprehensive and other adopted Borough Plans. 
Cross reference with Land Use 5H. Refer to 5H (1-4) for implementing actions. 

D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 22/38 

6. Parks, Recreation, and Open Space
Strategies 

Timeframe 

    1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 14.  Provide a diversity of parks, recreation facilities, trails, and open spaces to foster the health and 
wellness of Haines residents. Focus on recreation facilities that capitalize on the unique setting and natural 
beauty of Haines, create economic development opportunities, and benefit residents and visitors. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 
Objective 14A:  Provide regular maintenance for Borough-owned recreation facilities. 
Expand opportunities in a coordinated and efficient way.  D NA K 

1. Use Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee to help guide 
Borough decisions on priority improvements to local 
recreation facilities and facilitate communication between 
Borough staff, community members, and the Assembly on 
recreation issues.  

X X X Borough, PRAC D NA K 

2. Support community groups and volunteers in their efforts to
develop new recreation opportunities. X Borough, PRAC D NA K 

3. Fund a halftime (or greater) Borough Parks and Recreation 
position to coordinate and manage recreation programs, 
oversee and work with volunteers on trail and facility 
maintenance, obtain easements for trails and beach access 
areas, apply for grants to fund recreation improvements, 
manage community recreation programming, etc. 

X X Borough D NA K 

4. Designate as “Parks Recreation or Open Space” on Future
Growth Maps and zone accordingly parcels of Borough land 
that have previously been identified for parks (for example, 
Carrs Cove, Skyline Subd, other). 

X X Borough D NA K 

5. Establish a Parks and Recreation Foundation to assist with 
fundraising for desired projects. X X PRAC, Volunteers D NA K 

Objective 14B:  Keep the swimming pool in good repair. D NA K 
1. Keep the swimming pool in good repair; immediate needs are

outlined on Table 4.3. Provide a range of programs that cater 
to different user groups. X Borough D NA K 

2. Begin planning for pool replacement.
X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 14C:  Create public place for indoor fitness equipment and recreation. D NA K 
1. Immediately find public space for indoor fitness equipment to

fill this recreation gap especially important to young families 
and seniors. (i.e., pool solarium, next to lifeguard station at 
pool, in school, senior center, Chilkat Center basement). 
Cross reference with Community Svs 17E (4) 

X 

Borough, Haines 
Wellness / 

Fitness, PRAC 
D NA K 

2. Determine if Community Recreation Center can be financially
supported and if so, build. Cross reference with Community 
Svs 17E (5) X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 14D:   Maintain existing trails. Be pro-active to prevent trail use conflicts and 
ensure continued satisfactory experiences for all trail users. D NA K 

1. Complete an inventory and condition assessment of trails,
start with those most heavily used. Also evaluate signage 
leading visitors to trailheads and quality of hiking brochures. X Borough, PRAC D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 23/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

    1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

2. Create system and management for area trail maintenance.
Consider options such as Trail Mix or SeaTrails-like 
organization (or Haines chapter), PRAC, Borough Parks and 
Recreation staff (see action 41A (3) or other7. At a 
minimum, fund trail-building training for a resident who can 
then organize work parties and serve as a local expert. 

X X Borough D NA K 

3. Negotiate agreement with commercial tour operators that use
public trails to help maintain and improve those trails on a 
regular basis (now ad hoc). X X 

Borough, PRAC, 
Tour operators, 

ADNR 
D NA K 

4. Prepare plan or agreement regarding types or level of
commercial use for area trails so that the expectations for all 
users, including commercial, can be satisfied. In addition, 
address motorized versus non-motorized use and 
expectations. These discussions and agreements prevent 
future conflicts. 

X X 
PRAC, tour 
operators D NA K 

Objective 14E:  Prioritize recreation investments that maintain current facilities and 
assets, expand opportunities that will be accessible and used by many numbers of 
residents and visitors, and that fill gaps in recreation opportunities. Implement projects 
and actions that have been endorsed in community-adopted plans, such as this 
Comprehensive Plan, the Haines Public Use and Access Plan, and Haines Highway Scenic 
Corridor Partnership Plan. 

D NA K 

1. Use neighborhood input to identify needs and develop 
Skyline Park and Overlook Park in Skyline Subdivision. X X 

PRAC, Borough 
skyline 

residents
D NA K 

2. Determine feasibility of developing simple ski and sledding
hill with rope tow, oriented to families and teens. Non- 
winter months can be mountain bike or multi-use trails. If 
feasible, construct. 

X X 

PRAC, 
Borough, 

volunteers 
D NA K 

3. Use neighborhood input to identify needs and improve 
playground facilities at Emerson Field. X X 

PRAC, 
Borough, area 

id t
D NA K 

4. Determine level of support for skate park at Oslund Park and 
either improve to increase use or develop alternative. X X PRAC, Borough D NA K 

5. Designate Fort Seward Parade Grounds as “Park, Recreation 
or Open Space” on Future Growth Map. Work with 
landowner to develop agreement for long-term open 
space and public use. 

X X 

Borough, Port 
Chilkoot 

Company 
D NA K 

6. Maintain and repair Mt. Ripinsky Trail system.
X X X 

PRAC, 
Borough, 

ADNR, users
D NA K 

7. Complete Picture Point Park by installing a landscaped 
parking area, picnic tables, viewing area, and signage. X Borough D NA K 

8. Add ADA access to beach and a natural beachfront trail from
Lookout Park to Port Chilkoot Dock. X X Borough D NA K 

9. Maintain, improve, and build-out the Chilkat Peninsula
hiking system. X X X 

ADNR, 
commercial 
operators 

D NA K 

10. Stabilize and restore Chilkoot River trail. Cross reference
with Land Use 6A(6)

X X 

TWC, PRAC, 
State, 

Borough 
D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 24/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

    1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

11. Systematically implement the Haines Highway Scenic
Corridor Partnership Plan. (Also see Comp Plan Figure 8-3.)
(A) Develop a marketing plan for Corridor: Secure funding
and promote programs that enhance private sector
investment.
B) Expand the trail system and other recreational
opportunities off the Haines Highway at Dalton, Jarvis and 
Surgeon Creeks.
C) Provide formalized Klehini River access for Winter

Recreation at Wells Bridge.
D) Enhance Gateways/Interpretation at Picture Point,
Council Grounds.
E) Provide formal access to Chilkat River. Cross reference
with Transportation 4F (9) 

X X X 
ADOT&PF, 
Borough D NA K 

12. Construct trail and hut-to-hut system in the Takshanuk
Mountains or along the Dalton Trail. X X State, Borough D NA K 

Objective 14F:  Formalize access, manage areas, and provide infrastructure to improve 
public access and use of the Portage Cove waterfront, Lutak beaches and Tanani Pt, 
Chilkat River/ Carrs Cove beaches, Chilkoot River corridor, Chilkat Lake, Klehini River, and 
other coastal areas, rivers and lakes important to Haines residents and visitors. Cross 
reference with Land Use Objective 8A; refer to 8A and implementing actions (1-6) regarding priority 
public access trails and areas. 

D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 25/38 

7. Utilities
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 15.  Provide, or support provision of, adequate and cost effective utilities to enable residential living, 
economic opportunity, public safety, and add to the quality of life. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 15A:  Aggressively maintain the Haines Water Treatment Facility and water 
distribution infrastructure to prolong its capacity to operate in a manner that complies with 
federal and state regulations.  

D NA K 

1. Update the water sewer master plan; determine the useful
plant life for both the Water Treatment Facility and 
equipment.  X X Borough D NA K 

2. Plan and budget for routine and unexpected equipment
needs. Have spare parts on hand for critical components. X X X Borough D NA K 

3. Maintain an adequately funded equipment reserve account
for both planned and unexpected equipment needs. X X X Borough D NA K 

4. Base utility rates on an equitable and true assessment of the
costs to operate, maintain, and contribute to an equipment 
replacement fund. Periodically perform rate study of utility 
fees and adjust fees as needed based on results. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

5. Install backflow devices on Borough infrastructure as risk
warrants. For private customers, seek grants or incentives. X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 15B:  Monitor and protect the community’s drinking water sources and quality. D NA K 
1. Designate public drinking water source protection areas on 

Future Growth maps. Enact policy and amend zoning code 
to protect public drinking water from contamination. X X Borough D NA K 

2. Provide public education on protecting drinking water source 
quality by preparing a pamphlet to periodically distribute 
with utility billings, school outreach, news articles etc. X X Borough D NA K 

3. Connect Crystal Cathedral system to main Borough water
system. X Borough D NA K 

4. Develop a wellhead protection program for Crystal Cathedral.
Amend zoning code to require setbacks from drinking 
water wellheads in Crystal Cathedral area; work with ADEC 
to determine correct distance. Relocate potential 
contamination sources as opportunities arise. 

X X Borough D NA K 

5. Provide education on uses of chemicals and fertilizers, as well
as site drainage to landowners within Crystal Cathedral 
wellhead area. Seek cooperative environmental best 
management practices from adjacent land owners. 

X X Borough D NA K 

6. Encourage voluntary close out of unused or abandoned wells
in Crystal Cathedral area. X X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 26/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

7. Replace hand-dug lines from 1950’s to Piedad water intake to
reduce contamination threat. Replace asbestos/cement 
(AC) piping in Piedad Road. Upgrade Piedad water 
chlorination system to add a flow-paced chlorinator. 
Replace Piedad Spring Water Transmission Line and 
provide new tank at Piedad to store water from the springs 
during low flow periods (i.e. late at night) for use during 
higher demand periods during the day and enhance 
firefighting capacity. 

X X Borough D NA K 

8. Require setbacks from drinking water source intake at Piedad 
to protect from contamination; work with ADEC to 
determine correct distance. X X Borough D NA K 

9. Work with State (land manager) to determine if additional
watershed protections are needed at Lily Lake. If so, enact 
policy and amend zoning code to provide setbacks and 
allowed/disallowed activities. 

X X ADNR, Borough D NA K 

10. Monitor water levels in Lily Lake during the summer to
ensure no critical water shortages occur. X X X Borough D NA K 

11. Establish a periodic water quality testing program at Mud 
Bay roadside drinking water spring (Figure 7-8). Ensure 
future upland land use prevents contamination. Install 
signage at seep cautioning public on safety of water. 

X 
Borough, Mud Bay 

Residents D NA K 

12. Develop a wellhead protection program for Covenant Life 
Center drinking water. X X 

Borough, water 
system operator D NA K 

13. Identify locations of onsite septic systems in Borough and 
distribute information on proper maintenance. Start with 
more densely developed areas. X X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 15C:  Protect against fuel tank spills. D NA K 
1. Provide education on proper construction, maintenance and 

spill containment for fuel storage tanks. Distribute 
pamphlets to public and provide assistance in identifying 
grants. Focus on properties closest to anadromous streams 
first. 

X X 
Borough, Delta 

Western D NA K 

2. Ensure all aboveground Borough fuel storage tanks have spill
containment. X X Borough D NA K 

3. Update Borough codes as needed to require spill
containment on new or remodel construction in, at a 
minimum, avalanche and mass wasting prone areas and 
anadromous streams. 

X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 15D:   Aggressively maintain the Haines Wastewater Treatment Plant to prolong 
its capacity to operate in a manner that complies with federal and state regulations. D NA K 

1. Update the water sewer master plan; determine the useful
Wastewater Treatment Plant life for both the facility and 
equipment.  X X Borough D NA K 

2. Plan and budget for routine and unexpected equipment
needs. Have spare parts on hand for critical components. X X X Borough D NA K 

3. Maintain an adequately funded equipment reserve account
for both planned and unexpected equipment needs. X X X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 27/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

4. Base utility rates on an equitable and true assessment of the
costs to operate, maintain, and contribute to an 
equipment replacement fund. Periodically perform rate 
study of utility fees and adjust fees as needed based on 
results. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

5. Install additional manholes into Crystal Cathedral system.
X X X Borough D NA K 

6. Complete Highland Estates sewer system installation
X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 15E:  All private septic systems must comply with ADEC mandated separations 
and setbacks from wells and drinking water sources and property lines to prevent 
contamination and public safety threats.  Maintain septic systems. 

D NA K 

Objective 15F:  Continue to reduce infiltration into sewer system by segregating from 
storm water system. D NA K 

1. Provide regular maintenance of the oil water separator at
Port Chilkoot Dock. X X X Borough D NA K 

2. Maintain the storm water collection and disposal system so
that is does not pollute marine waters, soils, or 
groundwater. Install oil water separators where needed 
to protect water quality where drainage is to a drinking 
water wellhead or anadromous fish bearing stream. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 15G:  Provide, or ensure provision of, solid and hazardous waste disposal in a 
manner that does not adversely impact air, land, and water quality. Promote a Reduce- 
Reuse-Recycle approach and efforts. 

D NA K 

1. Actively engage in oversight of solid waste management to
ensure these services remain available to Borough 
residents at a reasonable cost. 

X X X 
Borough D NA K 

2. Maintain communication with solid waste collection and 
disposal contractors and ADEC to ensure that Borough is 
routinely copied on required annual reports to ADEC (due 
in February) and on ADEC’s landfill inspection reports. 
Periodically monitor compliance of landfill operations, 
including leachate, with permit requirements to ensure 
that public health, safety, and welfare are maintained. 

X X X 

Borough, ADEC, 
solid waste 
companies 

D NA K 

3. Encourage continued recycling effort. Provide education on 
composting systems. Collaborate with other northern 
Southeast Alaska communities and Canadian neighbors on 
recycling to achieve economy of scale and efficiencies. 

X X X Borough, HFR D NA K 

Objective 15H:  Reduce Haines Police and State Trooper time dealing with bear issues by 
reducing bear-garbage encounters. D NA K 

1. Implement a bear trash ordinance and education program
on proper management of garbage to reduce ‘problem 
bears’ and bear-human incidents and interactions. Include 
warnings and fines for improperly stored garbage. Initiate 
a public education program. Team with ADF&G, ADNR, 
Takshanuk Watershed Council, solid waste collection 
companies and others to fund and develop garbage bear 
outreach and education program. 

X 

Borough, TWC. 
HFR, solid waste 

companies, 
ADF&G, ADNR, 

school 

D NA K 

2. Increase number of bear proof waste containers
throughout Borough, target problem areas first. X X 

Borough, solid 
waste companies D NA K 

3. Install bear proof garbage containers at all municipal,
public, and commercial buildings X X 

Borough, State, 
solid waste D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 28/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Objective 15I:  Implement a junk car removal program. Register to receive MVRT by 
adopting an MVRT ordinance to initiate and submit to State DMV. D NA K 

1. Fund with annual Motor Vehicle Registration Tax (MVRT).
Register to receive MVRT by adopting an MVRT ordinance 
to initiate and submit to State DMV. X Borough D NA K 

2. Establish a taskforce and 2-month timeframe to investigate
options, pros and cons, costs, and present 
recommendation to administration and Assembly (if 
needed). A) Work with scrap metal buyers, solid waste 
businesses, shippers, and neighboring municipalities to 
identify options for disposal. B) Identify options and costs 
to periodically tow and secure junk vehicles in designated 
lot. C) ID parcel for use as a storage lot until a scrap barge 
can remove vehicles; if parcel not borough-owned, lease, 
rent or acquire land. 

X 

Borough, HFR, 
Acme, Chamber, 

solid waste 
companies 

D NA K 

Objective 15J:  Haines Borough residents need access to reliable, fast and affordable 
internet as this increasingly is a necessity for business, education and services. Cross 
reference with Economic Development Objective 3G; for implementing actions refer to actions 3 G (1-
3) 

D NA K 

Objective 15K:  Encourage energy efficient building construction, remodeling, and 
operating practices. Haines Borough and School District should lead the way in energy 
efficient building use, construction, and remodel. D NA K 

1. Establish an energy and emissions reduction program. A) Use
existing or conduct new energy and emissions audits. B) 
Establish municipal and community energy and emission 
use baseline. C) Set and adopt reduction targets. D) Identify 
options and measures to help achieve targets.  

X X 

Borough, office 
and building 

owners 
D NA K 

2. Require designers/contractors for new or renovated Borough
and School facilities to include life cycle cost analysis of 
heat and power options in building design. Set energy 
efficiency standards for new Borough and School buildings 
(using ASHRAE and other codes) so that these 
requirements are incorporated early into building design. 

X X 
Borough, Haines 
School District D NA K 

3. Take action to conserve energy, such as replacement of
Borough office and street lights with LED or lower energy 
consumption lights, use of fuel efficient municipal vehicles, 
upgrade to energy efficient windows, etc. 

X X X Borough D NA K 

4. Develop incentives for residents and businesses to invest in 
energy conservation and energy efficient technologies. (For 
example: A) Offer one-time discount on power bill for 
purchase and installation of pre-determined list of energy 
savings devices. B) Exempt local sales for purchase of pre-
identified list of energy saving and renewable energy 
technology. C) Provide property tax credit for a time period 
to residences or businesses that convert from fossil fuel 
based energy or power to local renewable energy. D) 
Exempt the value added by the addition of renewable 
energy technology from property tax for a time period. 

X X 
AP&T, IPEC, 

Borough D NA K 

5. Develop brochure to educate Borough employees,
residences and businesses on the importance of saving 
energy and on common techniques. 

X 

Chamber, 
Borough, Haines 

School, AP&T, 
IPEC, Delta 

Western, CIA 

D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 29/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Objective 15L:  Haines Borough should work with local electric utilities to achieve a rate of 
15 cents per KwH or lower. Support actions to reduce power, heating, and fuel costs. Cross 
reference with Econ Dev 3H 

D NA K 

1. Identify any actions that could lower rates. Focus on
opportunities to benefit commercial and industrial users. 
Cross reference with Econ Dev 3 H (1)  X X 

Borough, AP&T, 
RCA D NA K 

2. Explore the concept of net-metering, a consumer-based 
renewable energy incentive. X X 

AP&T, IPEC, RCA, 
Borough D NA K 

3. Separate heating from power needs; while both are
expensive this will increase the opportunity to install a less 
expensive source for one or the other. X X X 

Home and building 
owners D NA K 

4. Facilitate or sponsor a workshop and information on realistic,
non-petroleum based options to provide (or reduce costs) 
for home or small district heating (e.g. ground or air source 
heat exchange, bio-mass options, etc.) and power (solar, 
wind, small hydro, tidal/current systems). 

X X Borough, CIA D NA K 

5. Support feasibility studies and development of small-scale 
renewable power or heating projects in Haines that 
power or heat individual buildings, or a series of 
connected buildings or an area through district heat; such 
as local wind, biomass, smaller hydro, ground or air 
source heat pumps, and other. Update land use code as 
needed to ensure small scale renewable power or 
heating projects are allowed and compatible with 

i hb i  ti

X X 

Borough, 
Southeast 

Conference, State 
Legislators, AP&T, 

IPEC 

D NA K 

Objective 15M: Develop renewable energy sources sufficient to meet current and future 
year- round residential, institutional, commercial, and industrial needs in the Haines 
Borough. This includes enough local power from renewable sources to, where reasonably 
economic and practical, first provide year-round power to meet demand from 460 more 
residents over next 20 years and second, to tie freighters, barges and cruise ships to shore 
power while in port. 

D NA K 

1. Issue letters of support, lobby funders, and provide technical
assistance as appropriate for development of renewable 
and clean energy projects in Haines Borough. A goal is to 
lower rates, especially for industrial and commercial users. 

X Borough, all D NA K 

2. Support feasibility studies and other technical assessments
that will lead to development of additional larger 
renewable or clean power sources in the Borough, 
particularly projects that will reduce or stabilize power 
costs for consumers. 

X X 

Borough, 
Southeast 

Conference, State 
Legislators, AP&T, 

IPEC 

D NA K 

3. If it will benefit Haines consumers and rate payers, support
extension of Southeast Alaska electrical intertie grid from 
Upper Lynn Canal (Haines and Skagway) to the Canadian 
and Juneau electrical grid. X 

Borough, 
Southeast 

Conference, State 
Legislators, AP&T, 

IPEC 

D NA K 

4. Support and protect energy production at existing hydro
facilities including Lutak Hydro (AP&T), 10-Mile Hydro 
(IPEC), or planned facility at North Creek in Excursion Inlet. X X 

Borough, AP&T, 
IPEC D NA K 

5. Where possible combine recreational access and use with 
existing and future hydroelectric facilities. X 

AP&T, IPEC, 
Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 30/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

6. Maintain renewable energy options by preventing land 
uses, activities or development that could inhibit 
hydroelectric power generation from sites identified for 
possible energy production, including Connelly and 
Walker Lakes. 

X X X Borough, ADNR D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 31/38 

8. Public Safety
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 16.  Continue to keep crimes rates low and provide effective police, fire, and emergency medical services. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 16A:  Emphasize outreach and community policing programs to reduce 
crime, enhance safety, target local problems (e.g. alcohol and drug issues), and 
enhance community-police relationship. 

D NA K 

1. Reinstate the police reserve program.
X Borough D NA K 

2. Target youth alcohol abuse in Haines. Form a task force with 
Haines Police, Lynn Canal Counseling Services, SEARHC, 
School District, interested community members, State HSS, 
and others to identify and prioritize programs to 
implement in community. One program to investigate is 
youth courts, which exist in Juneau, Sitka, Ketchikan and 
Wrangell. Establish baseline data so there is a metric 
against which to track progress. 

X 
Borough, named 

parties D NA K 

3. Determine if gaps in Haines’s domestic violence services
network exist. (For example, is safe housing beyond the 5- 
d l bl d d?)

X X 
Borough, named 

parties D NA K 

4. Reduce domestic violence in Haines by partnering with 
SEARHC, Governor’s Office, AWARE Shelter, Council on 
Domestic Violence, and others to provide outreach, 
education, support, and legal advocacy. 

X 
Borough, named 

parties D NA K 

5. Support Haines Alcohol Task Force in carrying out its Action 
Plan. Expand program to cover cigarettes and marijuana. X X Borough 

6. Work with the State District Attorney Office to determine if
any process changes can increase domestic violence 
convictions. 

X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 16B:  Protect Borough public safety employees and volunteers responding to 
incidents within all parts of the Borough, in Klukwan (where responders occasionally 
volunteer), and across the Canadian border.  

D NA K 

1. Ensure mutual aid agreements are in place and current.
X X X Borough D NA K 

2. Collaborate with Alaska Troopers, federal TSA, US-Canadian 
border station personnel, and mining and heli-skiing 
businesses to provide first responder and first aid training 
and equipment for emergency response in the northwest 
Haines Highway parts of the Borough. 

X X X 

Borough D NA K 

Objective 16C:  Acquire and install an enhanced 911 system. D NA K 
1. Pursue grant opportunities and review E911 surcharge to pay

for enhanced 911 response system. Complete house 
numbering system to facilitate faster emergency response. X Borough D NA K 

2. Obtain new radios for emergency response personnel.
Federal FCC requirements that take effect January 1, 2013 

ll  “  b d” 
X Borough D NA K 

Objective 16D:   Accomplish deferred maintenance on Public Safety Building and/or 
construct new Public Safety facility. D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 32/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

1. Determine which building repairs/upgrades investments will
be made in current Public Safety Building versus a new 
facility. Set time table for building upgrade or replacement 
and commit to schedule for deferred maintenance and 
improvements. 

X X Borough D NA K 

2. Accomplish Public Safety Building deferred maintenance:
replace heating system, replace water pipes; repair walls 
and add new insulation (walls are too thin, approx. 4"), 
exterior security doors needed, new windows needed, 
replace toilet/plumbing fixtures for jail cells, new paint and 
new carpeting, lighting fixture replacement with T-8, 
restrooms need new fixtures. 

X X Borough D NA K 

3. Install specific Police and Fire Department improvements:
steel entry doors throughout for the safety and security of 
dispatchers, replace ramp access, man doors and roll up 
doors, ergonomic furnishings for 911 staff, assess best 
location for morgue and relocate if needed, add a sally 
port (a secure area where patrol cars can bring prisoners in 
and out of the police station), increase office space for 
police, increase equipment storage for police and fire 
(equipment now stored in old Lutak area building. 

X X Borough D NA K 

4. If Public Safety Building will continue its use as Assembly
Chambers, install ADA compliant bathroom on 1st floor 
and refurbish entry. 

X Borough D NA K 

5. Accomplish Klehini Valley Fire Hall improvements: Upgrade 
heating system, replace roll-up doors, and install a new 
roof. 

X X Borough D NA K 

Objective 16E:  Plan and budget for routine and unexpected equipment needs. D NA K 
1. Maintain an adequately funded equipment reserve account

for both planned and unexpected equipment needs. X X X Borough D NA K 

2. Haines Fire and Police Department equipment needs are 
pumper truck (3-5 years), pumper truck (10-20 years), 
tender or tanker (10-15 years), decontamination/hazmat 
room (now), security system (now), and police car (2-3 
years). The Klehini Fire Hall needs a 2500 gallon capacity 
tender/pumper truck. 

X X X 

Borough D NA K 

Objective 16F:  Periodically review public safety related portions of the Haines Borough 
code and update as needed. D NA K 

1. Update Disorderly Conduct section of code to add a local
charging option for incidents that do not rise to the level 
of a state criminal offense. 

X X 
Borough D NA K 

2. Update Parking section of code to enforce Borough parking
regulations. X X Borough D NA K 

3. Update Municipal Fines collection section of code to
provide a means of adjudicating borough offenses 
without having to go through the Alaska state courts. 

X 
Borough D NA K 

4. Update Dog ordinances and section of code to make 
enforcement a simpler process and eliminate 
misdemeanor offenses. 

X 
Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 33/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Objective 16G:  Improve fire response time and lower fire insurance rates. 

D NA K 

1. Identify land for future emergency response substations in 
the Mud Bay and Lutak vicinity. Acquire control of land 
(lease, purchase) if needed. 

X X 
Borough D NA K 

2. Conduct pumper tests every year in order to lower ISO
ratings and reduce fire insurance rates for residents and 
businesses within and close to fire hydrant-ed areas. X X Borough D NA K 

3. Implement results of 2012 ISO rating.
X X Borough D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 34/38 

9. Community Services
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 17.  Provide or support community services that enable residential living, economic opportunity, and add 
to quality of life. Give special attention to services that support families and seniors. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 17A:  Accomplish deferred maintenance. D NA K 
1. Install handicap access to the Sheldon Museum and Cultural

Center, repair foundation to prevent basement flooding, 
replace windows to improve energy efficiency and 
maintain a controlled building climate. Cross reference with 
Econ Dev 3O( 4)  

X X 
Borough, Sheldon 

Museum D NA K 

2. P Complete deferred maintenance and upgrades at the 
Chilkat Center for the Performing Arts. Cross reference with 
Econ Dev 3O (1) and see related actions there X X Borough D NA K 

3. M Provide ADA access at all Haines Borough facilities.
X X X Borough D NA K 

4. If Borough continues to own Senior Center, install a new
boiler, heating registers, insulated windows and 
weatherize the building to reduce operating costs, and 
make it more affordable to heat/run. 

X Borough D NA K 

Objective 17B:   Improve facilities over time by adding programming and space that 
adds value to offerings, makes a better working environment, and increases 
number of users and revenue. 

D NA K 

1. Increase marketing efforts Chilkat Center for the Performing
Arts to get higher use and revenue from local and traveling 
performers and for conferences. Assign marketing the 
Center as an identified duty of the HCVB (or other entity). 
Set goals for use and track progress. Cross reference with 
Econ Dev 3O(2) 

X Borough, HCVB D NA K 

2. Investigate use of Chilkat Center for arts classes.
X Arts Council D NA K 

3. Have joint bi-annual meeting for key board and staff of
Sheldon Museum, Library, HCVB, DRVC, the Haines Arts 
Council, tour providers, CIA, and others to identify ways to 
collaborate on events, local and tourist visitation, and 
revenue generation.  Cross reference with Econ Dev 3O (8) 

X X X Parties named D NA K 

4. Increase Haines Library work and storage space.
X Borough D NA K 

5. Provide continuity and stability for library by identifying core 
library programming/staff and striving to provide this as 
part of annual Borough operating budget rather than 
relying on unpredictable ‘soft’ grant funds. 

X Borough D NA K 

6. Add space at Sheldon Museum and Cultural Center for
collection storage, archival material, exhibits, staff work 
area, and a classroom. Cross reference with Econ Dev 3O 
(6) 

X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 35/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

7. Support committees working to acquire historically or
culturally significant properties such as Anway Cabin and 
Eldred Rock Lighthouse. Identify additional funding 
increments needed (possible funding sources: Borough, 
grant, sales, etc.) as part of acquisitions to maintain, 
operate and market new assets. Cross reference with Econ 
Dev 3O(7) 

X X 
Borough, Sheldon 

Museum, CVHS D NA K 

8. Define economic contribution (employment, wages, revenue
with multipliers) to Haines from arts and cultural 
businesses, organizations, and events. Cross reference with 
Econ Dev 3O(9) 

X X 
Borough,  Arts 

Council D NA K 

Objective 17C:  Support maintenance and expansion of Haines’s high level of health care 
services. D NA K 

1. Work with Cornerstone, SEARHC, REACH, and others to fill
critical gap in lack of in-home nursing services. X X 

Named parties, 
Borough D NA K 

2. Develop plan to bring skilled nursing beds to Haines.
X X 

Borough, 
SEARHC, State D NA K 

3. Work with Haines medical providers to bring an itinerant
pediatrician to Haines; and develop a long-term plan to 
bring a permanent pediatrician to the community. 

X X X Borough, 
SEARHC, private 

providers 
D NA K 

4. Develop a long-term plan to bring childbirth and related 
services to Haines. X X X Borough, SEARHC D NA K 

5. Examine health care models in other Southeast communities
and develop a plan to incorporate the successes of those 
communities into the Haines model, where appropriate. X 

Borough, 
SEARHC, State D NA K 

Objective 17D:   Sustain, promote and selectively expand services and amenities for 
retirees and seniors. Cross reference with Economic Development objective 3 L. D NA K 

1. Support creation of an indoor exercise area and regular
fitness classes for seniors. Combine with other community 
indoor fitness needs (as long as seniors are safe and 
welcomed).  

X X Borough, Sr Center, 
PRAC, senior service 

providers 
D NA K 

2. Provide a part time Community Senior Development
Coordinator position at Borough (similar to part time 
Community Youth Coordinator) to oversee activity and 
program development. 

X X X 
Borough D NA K 

3. Support adult education classes, seminars, and activity.
Cross reference with Education 18 A (1) X X X 

Arts Council, 
Chamber, Sheldon 
Museum, Library, 
State, Borough, 
Haines Schools 

D NA K 

4. Continue to team with Southeast Senior Services to advertise 
and market services currently available (i.e. transportation, 
lunches) and expand awareness of these services. 

X X Borough, SE Senior 
Service D NA K 

5. Support HAL/SLSL “campus” including development of
proposed Veteran’s Home. X X Borough, Assembly D NA K 

6. Identify most important downtown sidewalks/routes to
prioritize for snow removal to promote both senior 
mobility and walking to and from school, and commit to 
clearing them first and frequently. If needed, purchase 
additional sidewalk clearing equipment to accomplish. 

X X 

ADOT&PF, Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 36/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

7. Coordinate swimming pool updates and renovations with 
seniors to increase swimming pool accessibility for seniors. X X Borough, PRAC, Sr 

Services D NA K 

8. Expand senior transportation services/options.
X 

CIA, REACH, Inc., Sr 
Center, Boro, CIV, 
State HESS, ADNR, 

DPH & 
others w vans, 
Schools, SE Sr 

Services, Catholic 
Services 

D NA K 

9. Encourage collaboration and communications among 
agencies to support the Senior Lunch program. X Borough, CIA, CIV, 

state agencies, SE 
Senior Services, 

Catholic Services, 
others 

D NA K 

10. Develop web and paper brochure outlining the benefits of
retirement and senior living in Haines and identify
available services. Use in “Move to Haines”
campaign/marketing.

X 
Borough D NA K 

11. Conduct study: What has attracted seniors and retirees to
Haines? Use results of study to fill gaps and market more
effectively.

X X X 
Borough D NA K 

Objective 17E:  Increase number of family households with children under 18 over the next 
decade by at least 10% (28 more households) Cross reference with Economic Development 
Objective 3 K. Also refer to Community Svs 17C (3-4) and Education 18B (1-5) 

D NA K 

1. Identify gaps in services available to new parents and young
children, prioritize, identify possible funders, develop plan 
to fill needs.  Cross reference with Econ Dev 3 K (1)  X X The many org. in 

HNS that provide 
some services, 
Borough staff 

support 

D NA K 

2. Develop a web and paper brochure listing Haines services
and activities for new parents, children and families. 
Publicize and use for Move to Haines campaign/marketing. 
Cross reference with Econ Dev 3 K(2) 

X X D NA K 

3. Complete connected non-motorized network of sidewalks
and/or bicycle paths in town so families and young 
children can travel safely between home and downtown 
facilities.  Also see objective 4F 

X 
Borough, 
ADOT&PF D NA K 

4. Immediately find public space for indoor fitness equipment
to fill recreation gap especially important to young families 
and seniors. (i.e., pool solarium, next to life guard station 
at pool, senior center, Chilkat Center basement). Cross 
reference with Parks and Rec 14C(1)  

X 

Borough, PRAC, 
Haines 

Wellness/Fitness 
Group 

D NA K 

5. Determine if Community Recreation Center can be supported 
and if so, build. See task suggestions in Parks and 
Recreation chapter. Cross reference with Parks and Rec 
14C (2) 

X Borough D NA K 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 37/38 

Strategies 
Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

6. Increase the number outdoor recreation opportunities for
youth (See Park and Recreation chapter) such as: a simple 
ski and sledding hill, improved playground facilities , 
improved skatepark, maintain and repair Mt Ripinsky Trail, 
keep the swimming pool in good repair and begin planning 
for pool replacement, and support community groups and 
volunteers in their efforts to develop new recreation 
opportunities. 

X X X 

Borough, PRAC, 
State, commercial 

tour providers 
D NA K 

7. Continue to support Haines’ early learning opportunities.
Cross reference with Community Svs 18A (3) X X X 

Borough, State, 
Elected Officials D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



[DRAFT MARKUP – DEPARTMENTS] ACTION SUMMARY – Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan  page 38/38 

10. Education
Strategies 

Timeframe 

1-2     3-5     6-10+ 
Responsibility RATING

Goal 18.  Create and sustain an educated community with the skills and knowledge to take advantage of 
opportunity and thrive in the 21st century. 
Goal still relevant? 
Recommendations: 

Objective 18A:  Enhance and expand educational opportunities. D NA K 
1. Support adult education classes, seminars, and activity.
Cross reference with Community Services 17D (3) 

X X X 

Borough, Library, Arts 
Council, Chamber, 
Sheldon Museum, 

State, Haines School 

D NA K 

2. Develop classes and programs for the visual arts for locals
and visitors. Cross reference with Econ Dev 3 O(3) 

X 
Haines Arts Council, 

Haines Schools D NA K 

3. Continue to support Haines’ early learning opportunities.
Cross reference Community Svs 17E (7) X X X Borough, State, 

Elected Officials D NA K 

Objective 18B:   Foster and maintain Haines School District excellence. D NA K 
1. I Continue to implement Haines Borough School District

Strategic Plan. X X X Haines Schools D NA K 

2. I Create and sustain a supportive school environment.
X X X Haines Schools D NA K 

3. H Maintain the high performance measures of Haines public
schools by continuing to provide resources and support. X X X Haines Schools D NA K 

4. I Continue to provide outreach/support for lower income
youth. X X X Borough, Haines 

Schools D NA K 

5. P Accomplish Economic Development Objectives and Actions
to increase the number of jobs with wages that can support 
families. 

X X X 
All D NA K 

Include other objectives a/or actions? 



Action Summary Markup 2016: Phase I Assignments

Name Organization Title Email

Haines 
Borough 
Govt

Econ Dev Trans
Land Use 
& Future 
Growth

Parks, 
Rec, 
Open 
Space

Utilities
Public 
Safety

Com 
Services

Edu
Survey 
Sent 
October 
5

Julie Cozzi Borough Clerk jcozzi@haines.ak.us X X
Bill Seward Borough Manager wseward@haines.ak.us X X X
Jila Stuart Borough Finance jstuart@haines.ak.us X X X
Kyle Gray Chamber / FNB President KGray@FNBAlaska.com X X
Leslie Ross Borough Tourism Director lross@haines.ak.us X X
Debra Schnabel Chamber Director director.haineschamber@gmail.com X X
Shawn Bell Borough Harbor Master sbell@haines.ak.us X X
Brad Ryan Borough Facilities Manager bryan@haines.ak.us X X X
Norm Hughes Port & Harbor Advisory Committee Chair stormisurf@yahoo.com X X
Rob Goldberg Planning Commission Chair artstudioalaska@yahoo.com X X X
Rich Chapell Parks and Rec Advisory Committee Chair richard_chapell@yahoo.com X X X
Meredith Pohardt Parks and Rec Advisory Committee Vice‐Chair mpochardt@gmail.com X X
Scott Bradford Borough Water/Sewer sbradford@haines.ak.us X X
Heath Scott Borough Police Chief hscott@haines.ak.us X X
Judy Erekson Public Safety Commission Member judysclothing@hotmail.com X X
Jim Stanford Public Safety Commission Chair stanfrds@aptalaska.net X X
Patricia Brown Library Director director@haineslibrary.org X X
Helen Alten Sheldon Cultural Museum Museum Director halten@haines.ak.us X X
Maria Newman HAL Administrator mnewman@hainesassistedliving.org X X
Tony Habra Haines School Superintendent ahabra@hbsd.net X X

Action Summary Section

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 7A3



18.30.050 Appeals to the commission. 

An appeal made to the commission of a decision by the manager shall be requested by filing with the 
clerk, within 10 days of the date of the decision appealed, a written notice of appeal stating with 
particularity the grounds for the appeal. 

A. The commission shall decide at its next regularly scheduled meeting whether to rehear the manager’s 
decision. The commission shall decline to hear appeals in which the particular grounds for the appeal 
have not been stated. Any aggrieved person, including the developer, may appear at that meeting and 
explain to the commission why or why not it should rehear the manager’s decision. If the commission 
chooses to rehear the decision, it may choose to rehear the entire decision, or any portion thereof. 

B. If the commission decides to rehear a decision, or any portion thereof, it shall then immediately do so 
at that meeting and make its decision. 

1. Findings of fact adopted expressly or by necessary implication shall be considered as true if,
based upon a review of the whole record, they are supported by substantial evidence. 
Substantial evidence means such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as 
adequate to support a conclusion. If the record as a whole affords a substantial basis of fact 
from which the fact in issue may be reasonably inferred, the fact is supported by substantial 
evidence. The burden of proof shall be on the appellant to demonstrate the facts and resolution 
of the issues on appeal by substantial evidence. The evidence shall be limited to a review of the 
record, although further argument may be allowed. 

2. In all decisions the burden of proof shall be on the party challenging the decision of the
manager. The commission may confirm the manager’s decision, reverse the manager’s decision, 
or change the conditions which the manager placed on approval. The commission shall support 
its action with written findings. 

C. A decision by the manager shall not be stayed pending appeal, but action by the appellee in reliance 
on the decision shall be at the risk that the decision may be reversed on appeal. 

D. The commission’s decision may be appealed to the borough assembly pursuant to HBC 18.30.060. 
(Ord. 14‐02‐369 § 4; Ord. 04‐05‐078; Ord. 05‐02‐091) 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A



Paul A. L. Nelson 
Box 858 
Haines, Alaska  99827 
907‐303‐0130 

 September 7, 2016 

Haines Borough Planning Commission 
Box 1209 
Haines, Alaska 99827 

RE: Appeal of Managers decision on Land Use Permit of Portage Cove  
  Harbor Expansion. 

To: Haines Borough Planning Commission, 

 As per HBC 18.30.050 A, B and C, I hereby Appeal the decision of the Manager 
to grant the Land Use Permit of “Portage Cove Harbor Expansion”  without a Conditional Use Permit. 
This Appeal is based on the violation of HBC 18.50.010, 020, 030 and 040, CONDITIONAL USE by the 
Manager. The Managers approval of a Land Use Permit without a Conditional Use Permit is a violation of 
HBC 18.50.010 thru 040. The Managers email to Ms. Waterhouse, from 9/6/2016 (forwarded by email) 
regarding the Land Use Permit and the Consistency Review clearly shows the Managers violation of HBC 
18.50.010 thru 040.    

 The Manager has violated the requirements of the Haines Coastal Management Plan, 
specifically section 5, Enforceable Policies and section 
7, et al.  

        Furthermore, the Manager has violated HBC 18.030.040 PUBLIC NOTICE  
PROVISIONS by failing to provide for a Public hearing and failing to provide  
notice as required by HBC. 

      Additional proof of the violation of HBC will be provided at the Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting on September 8, 2016. 

 Sincerely, 

 Paul A. L. Nelson 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A1



From: Debra Schnabel [mailto:debra.schnabel@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, September 08, 2016 10:58 AM 
To: Julie Cozzi <jcozzi@haines.ak.us> 
Subject: Fwd: Land Use Permit: Harbor Expansion Project 

To the Clerk: 

As provided for in HBC 18.30.50, I am appealing the Manager's issuance of a land use permit "harbor 
expansion," citing violation of HBC 18.30.010 Permits G. Compliance. .."Any permit or approval issued 
under this title shall require compliance with the state fire code and any other federal, state or local 
regulations applicable to the activity."   

Issuance of the permit is out of compliance with HBC 18.60.010 General Approval Criteria A. Plans, 
which requires plans to be substantially consistent with the borough comprehensive plan and other 
applicable borough‐adopted plans.  

Issuance of the permit is out of compliance with HBC 18.70 Zoning Districts, which requires a conditional 
use permit for commercial activity exceeding 500 sq. ft.  

Citing additional violations is problematic because code assumes that the Borough is not the developer.  
In HBC 18.30.080 Compliance, and HBC 18.30.090, Violations, the Manager is directed to take specific 
action to resolve conflicts when violations are identified. I understand that the manager has the 
perspective of interpretation regarding violations. 

Following is correspondence that was sent directly to Planning Commission members (I inadvertently 
omitted Mr. Larry Geise) on August 31.  My complaint does not cite Borough Code but speaks 
conventionally to the issues.   According to my calendar, this appeal is being delivered on September 8, 
the tenth day following issuance of the permit, August 31, 2016.   

Debra Schnabel 
PO Box 129 
Haines, AK  99827 

(907) 766‐2827 
(907) 314‐0788 

The practice of peace and reconciliation is one of the most vital and artistic of human actions. ‐ Thich 
Nhat Hanh 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A2



From: <suzywaterhouse@hotmail.com> 
Date: September 8, 2016 at 6:46:27 PM MDT 
To: <jcozzi@haines.ak.us> 
Subject: Appeal of manager's decision 
Ms Cozzi, 

Please be informed that I would like to formally appeal the manager's decision regarding the 
inappropriate issuance of a land use permit for the Small Boat Harbor Expansion Project.  My appeal is 
based upon the fact that such land use permit has not been rendered in compliance with the applicable 
borough code. 

Thank you, 

Sincerely, 

Sue Waterhouse 

Sent from my iPhone 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A3



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 8A4

Record of Decision







La
nd

 U
se

 P
er

m
it 

16
-6

1:
 A

tta
ch

m
en

t 1
: D

es
ig

n 
Sh

ee
t /

 p
. 6

 o
f P

or
ta

ge
 C

ov
e 

H
ar

bo
r E

xp
an

sio
n 

V
ol

um
e 

2 
of

 2
 P

la
ns

 / 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

6





Operation and Maintenance Branch 

Public Notice 
 

       Alaska District           Date__29 April 2016           Identification No. ER-16-03  
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers          Please refer to the identification number when replying. 

Haines Harbor 

Section 408 Permit Request 

The Alaska District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has received a request for a 

Section 14 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 408) permit, hereafter referred to as 

a Section 408 permit, from PND Engineers Inc., on behalf of the Haines Borough, to modify an 

existing Corps project to provide harbor and wave protection facilities to increase capacity while 

providing safe vessel navigation, moorage, and launching among other navigation 

improvements. 

Section 408 authorizes the Secretary of the Army, on the recommendation of the Chief of 

Engineers of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, to grant permission for the alteration or 

occupation or use of a USACE civil works project if the Secretary determines that the activity 

will not be injurious to the public interest and will not impair the usefulness of the project. This 

Section 408 request is being considered in conjunction with Section 404 and Section 10 

applications through the USACE’s Regulatory Division. 

The proposed work would construct a new pile supported wave barrier wall that would tie into the 

southern end of the USACE 905-foot-long detached rubble mound breakwater and other items 

incidental to the development of an expanded harbor. 

A complete description of the proposed work may be found on the USACE Alaska District’s 

Regulatory website at the link below: 

http://www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PublicNotices/tabid/3350/Article/620454/poa-

2005-1976-portage-cove.aspx 

This public notice will expire 15 days after the date of this notice. If you have any questions about 

the proposed action, please contact me at (907) 753-5685 or at Julie.L.Anderson@usace.army.mil 

Julie L. Anderson 

Chief, Operation and Maintenance Branch 

http://www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PublicNotices/tabid/3350/Article/620454/poa-2005-1976-portage-cove.aspx
http://www.poa.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PublicNotices/tabid/3350/Article/620454/poa-2005-1976-portage-cove.aspx


DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
ALASKA DISTRICT, U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

REGULATORY DIVISION 
P.O. BOX 22270 

JUNEAU, AK  99802-2270 

June 15, 2016 

Regulatory Division 
POA-2005-1976 

Mr. Brad A. Ryan 
Haines Borough 
PO Box 1209 
Haines, AK  99827 

Dear Mr. Ryan: 

 Enclosed are two copies of Department of the Army permit POA-2005-1976, 
Portage Cove, which would authorize dredging, the discharge of fill and dredged 
material, and the installation of structures in waters of the United States to expand the 
Portage Cove Harbor.   

 The project site is located within Section 26, T. 30 S., R. 59 E., Copper River 
Meridian; USGS Quad Map Skagway A-2; Latitude 59.233º N., Longitude 135.440º W.; 
Portage Cove Harbor in Haines, Alaska. 

 The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation has issued a Certificate of 
Reasonable Assurance pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act for your project 
and found it to be in accordance with the Alaska Water Quality Standards. This 
certification is attached to the Department of the Army permit and will become a part of 
this permit when it is finalized. 

 Additionally, we have enclosed a Notification of Administrative Appeal Options and 
Process and Request for Appeal form regarding this Department of the Army Permit 
(see section labeled “Initial Proffered Permit”).  

 If you accept the conditions of the enclosed permit, please sign and date both 
copies and return them to us.  The permit will not be valid until we have returned a 
finalized copy to you.  This is not an authorization to commence construction.  No work 
is to be performed in Portage Cove until you have received a validated copy of the 
permit. 

 Nothing in this letter shall be construed as excusing you from compliance with other 
Federal, State, or local statutes, ordinances, or regulations which may affect this work. 



 Please contact me via email at Randal.P.Vigil@usace.army.mil, by mail at the 
address above, by phone at (907) 790-4491, if you have questions.   

Sincerely, 

Randal P. Vigil 
Project Manager 

Enclosures 

CF:  

dsomerville@pndengineers.com 
baustin@pndengineers.com 



ENG FORM 1721, Nov 86 EDITION OF SEP 82 IS OBSOLETE (33 CFR 325 (Appendix A))
- 1 - 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY PERMIT 

Permittee:  Haines Borough        

Permit No.:  POA-2005-1976 (Portage Cove)        

Issuing Office:  U.S. Army Engineer District, Alaska  

NOTE:  The term "you" and its derivatives, as used in this permit, means the permittee or any future 
transferee.  The term "this office" refers to the appropriate district or division office of the Corps of 
Engineers having jurisdiction over the permitted activity or the appropriate official of that office acting 
under the authority of the commanding officer. 

You are authorized to perform work in accordance with the terms and conditions specified below. 

Project Description:  

1. Dredge 110,000 cubic yards (cy) of marine sediment from 7 acres below the Mean High Water mark
(MHW), (approximate elevation +15.8 feet above the 0.0 foot contour), to provide sufficient water depth 
vessels at all tidal ranges. The disposal of 84,500 cy of the dredged material is proposed through the 
discharge over 50 acres of the seafloor at a location approximately 2.8 miles northeast of the proposed 
dredging site at Latitude 59.238333º N., Longitude 135.400639º W. in Chilkoot Inlet. 

2. Discharge 23,380 cubic yards of armor rock and 25,500 cy of dredged material into 3.73 acres below
the plane of the High Tide Line (HTL), (approximate elevation +21.2 feet above the 0.0 foot contour), to 
construct a parking area, boat launch ramp, and protect the dredged area slopes. 

3. Remove from 0.073 acres below the MHW 900 cubic yards of existing armor rock from the rubble
mound breakwater and replace with 900 cubic yards of larger armor rock to increase wave protection. 

4. Remove from below MHW and dispose one 11 feet wide by 136 feet long transient float including six
12-inch diameter steel piles and all miscellaneous mounting hardware and appurtenances. 

5. Remove from below MHW and relocate one 36 feet wide by 42 feet long seaplane float including two
16-inch diameter steel piles and all miscellaneous mounting hardware and appurtenances. 

6. Replace from below MHW three 12-inch diameter steel piles from transient float designated to remain.

7. Replace from below MHW 2,534 linear feet of 16-inch diameter High Density Polyethylene (HDPE)
sewer outfall pipe; replace 70 linear feet of 16-inch diameter ductile iron pipe sewer outfall diffuser. 

8. Relocate from below MHW one 28 feet wide by 50 long, pile-supported, (four 24- inch diameter steel)
work float. 

9. Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 300 feet long, pile-supported, (fourteen 16-inch diameter
steel), headwalk float. 

10. Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 275 feet, pile-supported, (ten 16-inch diameter steel), long
mainwalk float. 

11. Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 194 feet long, pile-supported, (eight 16- inch diameter steel),
mainwalk float. 

12. Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 120 feet long, pile-supported, (eight 16- inch diameter steel),
transient float. 



ENG FORM 1721, Nov 86 EDITION OF SEP 82 IS OBSOLETE (33 CFR 325 (Appendix A))
- 2 - 

13. Install below MHW six 5 feet wide by 42 feet long, pile-supported, (six 16-inch diameter steel), finger
floats. 

14. Install below MHW ten 4 feet wide by 32 feet long finger floats.

15. Install below MHW one 44 feet wide by 300 feet long, pile-supported, (ten 12-inch diameter steel),
boarding float. 

16. Install below MHW one 50 feet wide by 180 feet long drive down float with one 17 feet wide by 145
feet long transfer bridge supported with a total of twenty 24-inch diameter and 16-inch diameter steel 
piles. 

17. Install below MHW one 20 feet wide by 40 feet long, pile-supported (twelve 16-inch diameter steel),
approach dock with one 7 feet wide by 80 feet long covered aluminum gangway and one 20 feet wide by 
20 feet long gangway landing float. 

18. Install below MHW 633 linear feet of wave barrier with navigational lighting; supported with a total of
one hundred fifty nine 30-inch diameter steel vertical bearing piles and 24-inch diameter steel barrier piles 
with sheet pile wings 

19. Install below MHW 2,650 linear feet of HDPE sewer outfall pipe with diffuser. Work would include
installation of 900 linear feet of corrugated polyethylene drainage pipe, three concrete storm drain 
manholes, one storm drain oil water separator, and one concrete storm drain outfall with check valve and 
debris protection grate. 

All work will be performed in accordance with the attached plan, sheets 1 - 20, dated June 2016. 

Project Location:   

Section 35, T. 30 S., R. 59 E., Copper River Meridian; USGS Quad Map Skagway A-2; Latitude 
59.233733º N., Longitude 135.440287º W.; Portage Cove Harbor, in Haines, Alaska. 

Permit Conditions:  

General Conditions: 

1. The time limit for completing the work authorized ends on June 30, 2021.  If you find that you need
more time to complete the authorized activity, submit your request for a time extension to this office for 
consideration at least one month before the above date is reached. 

2. You must maintain the activity authorized by this permit in conformance with the terms and conditions
of this permit.  You are not relieved of this requirement if you abandon the permitted activity, although you 
may make a good faith transfer to a third party in compliance with General Condition 4 below.  Should 
you wish to cease to maintain the authorized activity or should you desire to abandon it without a good 
faith transfer, you must obtain a modification of this permit from this office, which may require restoration 
of the area. 

3. If you discover any previously unknown historic or archeological remains while accomplishing the
activity authorized by this permit, you must immediately notify this office of what you have found.  We will 
initiate the Federal and State coordination required to determine if the remains warrant a recovery effort 
or if the site is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places. 

4. If you sell the property associated with this permit, you must obtain the signature of the new owner in
the space provided and forward a copy of the permit to this office to validate the transfer of this 
authorization. 

5. If a conditioned water quality certification has been issued for your project, you must comply with the
conditions specified in the certification as special conditions to this permit.  For your convenience, a copy 
of the certification is attached if it contains such conditions. 



ENG FORM 1721, Nov 86 EDITION OF SEP 82 IS OBSOLETE (33 CFR 325 (Appendix A))
- 3 - 

6. You must allow representatives from this office to inspect the authorized activity at any time deemed
necessary to ensure that it is being or has been accomplished in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of your permit. 

Special Conditions:   

1. Your use of the permitted activity must not interfere with the public’s right to free navigation on all
navigable waters of the United States. 

2. You must install and maintain, at your expense, any safety lights and signals prescribed by the United
States Coast Guard (USCG), through regulations or otherwise, on your authorized facilities.  The USCG 
may be reached at the following address and telephone number:  Commander (dpw), 17th Coast Guard 
District, P.O. Box 25517, Juneau, Alaska  99802; or by telephone at (907) 463-2272. 

3. The permittee understands and agrees that, if future operations by the United States require the
removal, relocation, or other alteration, of the structure or work herein authorized, or if, in the opinion of 
the Secretary of the Army or his authorized representative, said structure or work shall cause 
unreasonable obstruction to the free navigation of the navigable waters, the permittee will be required, 
upon due notice from the Corps of Engineers, to remove, relocate, or alter the structural work or 
obstructions caused thereby, without expense to the United States.  No claim shall be made against the 
United States on account of any such removal or alteration. 

4. The permittee shall comply with the National Marine Fisheries Service Marine Mammal and/or
Construction Conditions dated March 15, 2016, and provided as an attachment to this permit. 

The permittee shall comply with the Federal Endangered Species Act, you must implement all of the 
mitigating measures identified in the enclosed National Marine Fisheries Service letter of concurrence 
(Number NMFS #AKR-2016-9528, dated March 15, 2016), including those ascribed to the Corps therein.  
If you are unable to implement any of these measures, you must immediately notify the Corps and the 
National Marine Fisheries Service so we may consult as appropriate, prior to initiating the work, in 
accordance with Federal law. 

5 The Permittee shall use only clean fill material for this project.  The fill material shall be free from items 
such as trash, debris, automotive parts, asphalt, construction materials, concrete blocks with exposed 
reinforcement bars, and soils contaminated with any toxic substance, in toxic amounts in accordance with 
Section 307 of the Clean Water Act. 

To prevent sedimentation into adjacent Waters of the U.S. outside of the authorized footprint the 
Permittee shall install silt curtain barriers with weighted skirts that extend around all in-water work 
areas to include work that is adjacent to surface waters.  The turbidity barriers shall remain in place, 
monitored for effectiveness and maintained until the authorized work has been completed and all 
suspended and erodible materials have been stabilized.  Turbidity barriers shall be removed upon 
stabilization of the work area. 

The Permittee shall install erosion control measures along the perimeter of all work areas to prevent 
the displacement of fill material outside the authorized work area as detailed on Drawing 4 of 20.  The 
erosion control measures shall remain in place and be maintained until all authorized work is 
completed and the work areas are stabilized.  Immediately after completion of the final grading of the 
land surface, all slopes, land surfaces, and filled areas shall be stabilized using sod, degradable mats, 
barriers, or a combination of similar stabilizing materials to prevent erosion. 

Further Information: 

1. Congressional Authorities:  You have been authorized to undertake the activity described above
pursuant to: 

   (X) Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403). 



ENG FORM 1721, Nov 86 EDITION OF SEP 82 IS OBSOLETE (33 CFR 325 (Appendix A))
- 4 - 

   (X) Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1344). 

   ( ) Section 103 of the Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act of 1972 (33 U.S.C. 1413). 

2. Limits of this authorization.

a. This permit does not obviate the need to obtain other Federal, State, or local authorization required
by law. 

b. This permit does not grant any property rights or exclusive privileges.

c. This permit does not authorize any injury to the property or rights of others.

d. This permit does not authorize interference with any existing or proposed Federal project.

3. Limits of Federal Liability.  In issuing this permit, the Federal Government does not assume any liability
for the following: 

a. Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of other permitted or unpermitted
activities or from natural causes. 

b. Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of current or future activities
undertaken by or on behalf of the United States in the public interest. 

c. Damages to persons, property, or to other permitted or unpermitted activities or structures caused
by the activity authorized by this permit. 

d. Design or construction deficiencies associated with the permitted work.

e. Damage claims associated with any future modification, suspension, or revocation of this permit.

4. Reliance on Applicant's Data:  The determination of this office that issuance of this permit is not
contrary to the public interest was made in reliance on the information you provided. 

5. Reevaluation of Permit Decision.  This office may reevaluate its decision on this permit at any time the
circumstances warrant.  Circumstances that could require a revaluation include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

a. You fail to comply with the terms and conditions of this permit.

b. The information provided by you in support of your permit application proves to have been false,
incomplete, or inaccurate (See 4 above). 

c. Significant new information surfaces which this office did not consider in reaching the original public
interest decision. 

Such a reevaluation may result in a determination that it is appropriate to use the suspension, 
modification, and revocation procedures contained in 33 CFR 325.7 or enforcement procedures such as 
those contained in 33 CFR 326.4 and 326.5.  The referenced enforcement procedures provide for the 
issuance of an administrative order requiring you to comply with the terms and conditions of your permit 
and for the initiation of legal action where appropriate.  You will be required to pay for any corrective 
measures ordered by this office, and if you fail to comply with such directive, this office may in certain 
situations (such as those specified in 33 CFR 209.170) accomplish the corrective measures by contract or 
otherwise and bill you for the cost. 

6. Extensions.  General Condition 1 establishes a time limit for the completion of the activity authorized
by this permit.  Unless there are circumstances requiring either a prompt completion of the authorized 
activity or a reevaluation of the public interest decision, the Corps will normally give favorable 
consideration to a request for an extension of this time limit. 



ENG FORM 1721, Nov 86 EDITION OF SEP 82 IS OBSOLETE (33 CFR 325 (Appendix A))
- 5 - 

Your signature below, as permittee, indicates that you accept and agree to comply with the terms and 
conditions of this permit. 

_______________________ 
Brad A. Ryan (DATE) 
Haines Borough (Interim) Manager 

This permit becomes effective when the Federal official, designated to act for the Secretary of the Army, 
has signed below. 

_______________________ 
FOR: DISTRICT COMMANDER (DATE) 
Colonel Michael S. Brooks 
Randal P. Vigil 
South Branch, Regulatory Division 

When the structures or work authorized by this permit are still in existence at the time the property is 
transferred the terms and conditions of this permit will continue to be binding on the new owner(s) of the 
property.  To validate the transfer of this permit and the associated liabilities associated with compliance 
with its terms and conditions have the transferee sign and date below. 

_______________________ 
(TRANSFEREE) (DATE) 











































555 Cordova Street 

Anchorage, Alaska 99501-2617 

Main: 907.269.6285 

Fax: 907.334.2415 
www.dec.alaska.gov/water/wwdp October 30, 2015 

Haines Borough 
Attention: David Sosa, Borough Mayor 
P.O. Box 1209 
Haines, AK 99827 

Re: Portage Cove 
Reference No. POA–2005-1976 

Dear Mayor Sosa: 

In accordance with Section 401 of the Federal Clean Water Act of 1977 and provisions of the Alaska 

Water Quality Standards, the Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) is issuing the 

enclosed Certificate of Reasonable Assurance for placement of dredged and/or fill material in waters of 

the U.S., including wetlands and streams, associated with the upgrade and maintenance of the Haines 

Harbor in Portage Cove, Haines, Alaska. 

DEC regulations provide that any person who disagrees with this decision may request an informal 

review by the Division Director in accordance with 18 AAC 15.185 or an adjudicatory hearing in 

accordance with 18 AAC 15.195 – 18 AAC 15.340. An informal review request must be delivered to the 

Director, Division of Water, 555 Cordova Street, Anchorage, AK  99501, within 15 days of the permit 

decision. Visit http://www.dec.state.ak.us/commish/ReviewGuidance.htm for information on 

Administrative Appeals of Department decisions. 

An adjudicatory hearing request must be delivered to the Commissioner of the Department of 

Environmental Conservation, 410 Willoughby Avenue, Suite 303, PO Box 111800, Juneau, AK 99811-

1800, within 30 days of the permit decision. If a hearing is not requested within 30 days, the right to 

appeal is waived.  

By copy of this letter we are advising the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers of our actions and enclosing a 

copy of the certification for their use. 

Sincerely, 

James Rypkema 
Program Manager, Storm Water and Wetlands 

Enclosure: 401 Certificate of Reasonable Assurance 

cc: (with encl.) 
Randy Vigil, USACE, Juneau 
Dick Somerville, P.E. PND Engineers, Inc. 

Jackie Timothy, ADF&G  
USFWS Field Office Juneau  
Mark Jen, EPA Operations, Anchorage 



POA − 2005 − 1976 CERT. docx̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅ Page 1 of 4 

STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION 

CERTIFICATE OF REASONABLE ASSURANCE 

In accordance with Section 401 of the Federal Clean Water Act (CWA) and the Alaska Water Quality 

Standards (18 AAC 70), a Certificate of Reasonable Assurance, is issued to Haines Borough, attention 

Mayor Sosa, at P.O. Box 1209, Haines, AK 99827, for placement of dredged and/or fill material in 

waters of the U.S. including wetlands and streams in association with the upgrade of the Haines Harbor 

in Portage Cove, Haines, Alaska. The applicant’s purpose is to construct harbor and wave protection 

facilities to increase capacity while providing safe vessel navigation, moorage, launching, loading, 

staging and parking improvements, and to provide clearance for proposed boat launch, drive down 

float, and additional vessel moorage. 

The work will entail the following efforts: 

 Dredge approximately 129,450 cubic yards (cy) of marine sediment from 7.93 acres below the

Mean High Water mark (MHW), approximate elevation of +15.8 feet above the 0.0 foot

contour, to provide sufficient water depth vessels at all tidal ranges. The disposal of 104,450 cy

of the dredged material will be discharged over 50 acres of the seafloor at a location

approximately 1.5 miles northeast of the dredging site at Latitude 59.238333° N., Longitude -

135.400639° W. in Chilkoot Inlet.

 Discharge approximately 23,380 cy of armor rock and 19,320 cy of dredged material into 3.73

acres below the plane of the High Tide Line (HTL), with an approximate elevation of +21.2

feet above the 0.0 foot contour, to construct a parking area, boat launch ramp, and to protect

the dredge area slopes.

 Remove from below the MHW and dispose of one 11 feet wide by 136 feet long transient float

including six 12-inch diameter steel piles and all miscellaneous mounting hardware and

appurtenances.

 Remove from below MHW and relocate one 36feet wide by 42 feet long seaplane float

including two 16-inch diameter steel piles and all miscellaneous mounting hardware and

appurtenances.

 Replace from below MHW 1,800 linear feet of 16-inch diameter High Density Polyethylene

(HDPE) sewer outfall pipe; replace 70 linear feet of 16-inch diameter ductile iron pipe sewer

outfall diffuser.

 Relocate from below MHW one 28 feet wide by 50 feet long, pile-supported, (four 24-inch

diameter steel) work float.

 Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 320 feet long, pile-supported, (sixteen 16-inch diameter

steel) headwalk float.

 Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 230 feet long, pile-supported, (ten 16-inch diameter

steel), long mainwalk float.

 Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 275 feet long, pile-supported, (ten 16-inch diameter

steel), long mainwalk float.



POA − 2005 − 1976 CERT. docx̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅ Page 2 of 4 

 Install below MHW one 10 feet wide by 124 feet long, pile-supported, (ten 16-inch diameter

steel), transient float.

 Install below MHW six 5 feet wide by 42 feet long, pile-supported, (six 16-inch diameter steel),

finger floats.

 Install below MHW twelve 4 feet wide by 32 feet long finger floats.

 Install below MHW one 44 feet wide by 300 feet long, pile-supported, (ten 12-inch diameter

steel), boarding float.

 Install below MHW one 50 feet wide by 180 feet long, pile-supported, (twelve 24-inch diameter

steel), drive down float with one 17 feet wide by 145 feet long, pile-supported, (eight 16-inch

diameter steel), transfer bridge.

 Install below MHW one 20 feet wide by 40 feet long, pile-supported, (twelve 16-inch diameter

steel), approach dock with one 7 feet wide by 80 feet long covered aluminum gangway and one

20 feet wide by 20 feet long gangway landing float.

 Install below MWH 700 linear feet of wave barrier with navigational lighting; supported with

forty-eight 30-inch diameter steel bearing piles and one hundred thirty-one 24-inch diameter

steel barrier piles with sheet pile wings.

 Install below MHW 2,650 linear feet of HDPE sewer outfall pipe with diffuser. Work will

include installation of 900 linear feet of corrugated polyethylene drainage pipe, three concrete

storm drain manholes, one storm drain oil water separator, and one concrete storm drain outfall

with check valve and debris protection grate.

Additional information 

The borough submitted a sediment characterization and analysis report dated December 2014 to the 

U.S. Corps of Engineers and DEC for the project. According to the report, no historical or present 

contamination exists at the proposed dredge site. A portion of the dredged material will be used as fill 

material for the proposed parking area. Any excess material not incorporated into the project will be 

disposed of through unconfined open water disposal in Chilkoot Inlet. 

A state issued water quality certification is required under Section 401 because the proposed activity will 

be authorized by a U.S. Army Corps of Engineers permit (POA-2005-1976) and a discharge of 

pollutants to waters of the U.S. located in the State of Alaska may result from the proposed activity. 

Public notice of the application for this certification was given as required by 18 AAC 15.180 in the 

Corps Public Notice POA-2005-1976 posted from September 25, 2015 to October 24, 2015. 

The proposed activity is located within Section 35, T. 30 S., R. 59 E., Copper River Meridian; Latitude 

59.233861° N., Longitude -135.440193° W.; in Haines, Alaska. 

The Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) reviewed the application and certifies that 

there is reasonable assurance that the proposed activity, as well as any discharge which may result, will 

comply with applicable provisions of Section 401 of the CWA and the Alaska Water Quality Standards, 

18 AAC 70, provided that the following additional measures are adhered to. 



POA − 2005 − 1976 CERT. docx̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅ Page 3 of 4 

1. Reasonable precautions and controls must be used to prevent incidental and accidental discharge

of petroleum products or other hazardous substances. Fuel storage and handling activities for

equipment must be sited and conducted so there is no petroleum contamination of the ground,

subsurface, or surface waterbodies.

2. During construction, spill response equipment and supplies such as sorbent pads shall be

available and used immediately to contain and cleanup oil, fuel, hydraulic fluid, antifreeze, or

other pollutant spills. Any spill amount must be reported in accordance with Discharge

Notification and Reporting Requirements (AS 46.03.755 and 18 AAC 75 Article 3). The applicant

must contact by telephone the DEC Area Response Team for Southeast Alaska (907) 465-5340

during work hours or 1-800-478-9300 after hours. Also, the applicant must contact by telephone

the National Response Center at 1-800-424-8802.

3. Runoff discharged to surface water (including wetlands) from a construction site disturbing one

or more acres must be covered under Alaska’s General Permit for Storm Water Discharges from

Large and Small Construction Activities in Alaska (AKR100000). This permit requires a Storm

Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). For projects that disturb more than five acres, this

SWPPP must also be submitted to DEC (William Ashton, 907-269-6283) prior to construction.

4. Construction equipment shall not be operated below the ordinary high water mark if equipment is

leaking fuel, oil, hydraulic fluid, or any other hazardous material. Equipment shall be inspected

and recorded in a log on a daily basis for leaks. If leaks are found, the equipment shall not be used

and pulled from service until the leak is repaired.

5. All work areas, material access routes, and surrounding wetlands involved in the construction

project shall be clearly delineated and marked in such a way that equipment operators do not

operate outside of the marked areas.

6. Natural drainage patterns shall be maintained, to the extent practicable, without introducing

ponding or drying.

7. Excavated or fill material, including overburden, shall be placed so that it is stable, meaning after

placement the material does not show signs of excessive erosion. Indicators of excess erosion

include: gullying, head cutting, caving, block slippage, material sloughing, etc. The material must

be contained with siltation best management practices (BMPs) to preclude reentry into any waters

of the U.S., which includes wetlands.

8. Include the following BMPs to handle stormwater and total stormwater volume discharges as

they apply to the site:

a. Divert stormwater from off-site around the site so that it does not flow onto the project site

and cause erosion of exposed soils;

b. Slow down or contain stormwater that may collect and concentrate within a site and cause

erosion of exposed soils;

c. Place velocity dissipation devices (e.g., check dams, sediment traps, or riprap) along the length

of any conveyance channel to provide a non-erosive flow velocity. Also place velocity

dissipation devices where discharges from the conveyance channel or structure join a water

course to prevent erosion and to protect the channel embankment, outlet, adjacent stream

bank slopes, and downstream waters.



POA − 2005 − 1976 CERT. docx̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅̅ ̅ Page 4 of 4 

9. The permittee must stabilize any dredged material (temporarily or permanently) stored on upland

property to prevent erosion and subsequent sedimentation into jurisdictional waters of the United

States. The material must be contained with siltation control measures to preclude reentry into

any waters of the U.S., including wetlands.

10. If during dredging a petroleum sheen appears on the water, a sorbent boom shall be installed to

enclose the dredge area and the applicant shall contact the DEC Area Response Team for

Southeast Alaska (907) 465-5340 during work hours or 1-800-478-9300 after hours. Sediment and

water column testing may be required at that time.

11. Fill material (including dredge material) must be clean sand, gravel or rock, free from petroleum

products and toxic contaminants in toxic amounts.

12. All dredging shall be conducted so as to minimize the amount of dredge material and suspended

sediments that enter Portage Cove. Appropriate Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be

employed to minimize sediment loss and turbidity generation during dredging. BMPs may

include, but are not limited to, the following:

 Eliminating multiple bites while the bucket is on the seafloor

 No stockpiling of dredged material on the seafloor

 No seafloor leveling

 Slowing the velocity (i.e., increasing the cycle time) of the ascending loaded clamshell

bucket through the water column

 Pausing the dredge bucket near the bottom while descending and near the water line while

ascending

 Placing filter material over the barge scuppers to clear return water

 If dewatering runoff is discharged from the barge, silts must be removed prior to direct or

indirect discharge to Portage Cove.

13. Any disturbed ground and exposed soil not covered with fill must be stabilized and re-vegetated

with endemic species, grasses, or other suitable vegetation in an appropriate manner to minimize

erosion and sedimentation, so that a durable vegetative cover is established in a timely manner.

This certification expires five (5) years after the date the certification is signed. If your project is not 

completed by then and work under U.S Army Corps of Engineers Permit will continue, you must 

submit an application for renewal of this certification no later than 30 days before the expiration date 

(18 AAC 15.100). 

Date: October 30, 2015 

James Rypkema, Program Manager 
Storm Water and Wetlands 



























NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND 
REQUEST FOR APPEAL 

Applicant:  Haines Borough File Number: POA-2005-1976 Date: 6/15/2016 
Attached is: See Section below 
X INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) A 

PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) B 
PERMIT DENIAL C 
APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION D 
PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION E 

SECTION I - The following identifies your rights and options regarding an administrative appeal of the above 
decision.  Additional information may be found at 
http://www.usace.army.mil/CECW/Pages/reg_materials.aspx or Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331. 
A:  INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT:  You may accept or object to the permit. 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final

authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit.

• OBJECT:  If you object to the permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request that
the permit be modified accordingly. You must complete Section II of this form and return the form to the district engineer.
Your objections must be received by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will forfeit your right
to appeal the permit in the future.  Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your objections and may: (a)
modify the permit to address all of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your objections, or (c) not modify
the permit having determined that the permit should be issued as previously written.  After evaluating your objections, the
district engineer will send you a proffered permit for your reconsideration, as indicated in Section B below.

B:  PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or appeal the permit 
• ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final

authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit.

• APPEAL:  If you choose to decline the proffered permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you
may appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section II of this
form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the
date of this notice.

C:  PERMIT DENIAL:   You may appeal the denial of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process 
by completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division 
engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 

D:  APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You may accept or appeal the approved JD or 
provide new information. 
• ACCEPT:  You do not need to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD.  Failure to notify the Corps within 60 days of the date

of this notice, means that you accept the approved JD in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD.

• APPEAL:  If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers Administrative
Appeal Process by completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received
by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice.

E:  PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You do not need to respond to the Corps 
regarding the preliminary JD.  The Preliminary JD is not appealable.  If you wish, you may request an 
approved JD (which may be appealed), by contacting the Corps district for further instruction.  Also you may 
provide new information for further consideration by the Corps to reevaluate the JD. 

http://www.usace.army.mil/CECW/Pages/reg_materials.aspx


SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TO AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT 
REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS:  (Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an 
initial proffered permit in clear concise statements.  You may attach additional information to this form to clarify where your reasons 
or objections are addressed in the administrative record.) 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The appeal is limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the 
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined is needed to 
clarify the administrative record.  Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record.  However, 
you may provide additional information to clarify the location of information that is already in the administrative record. 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION: 
If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the appeal 
process you may contact: 

Randal Vigil 
Alaska District Corps of Engineers 
Juneau Regulatory Field Office (CEPOA-RD-SE) 
Post Office Box 22270 
Juneau, Alaska 99802-2270 
(907) 790-4491 

If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you may 
also contact: 

Regulatory Program Manager 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Pacific Ocean Division 
CEPOD-PDC, Bldg 525 
Fort Shafter, HI  96858-5440 

RIGHT OF ENTRY:  Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government 
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process.  You will be provided a 15 day 
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate in all site investigations. 

_______________________________
Signature of appellant or agent. 

Date: Telephone number: 



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 16-01-429 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
Subsection 18.30.040(I) to change how and when the Planning Commission 
reviews borough projects. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Section 4.   Amendment of Subsection 18.30.040(I).  Subsection 18.30.040(I) of the 
Haines Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

18.30.040 Planning commission. 

I. The commission shall review and report to the borough assembly regarding the location, 
design, construction, demolition or disposition of any public building, facility, collector or arterial 
street, park, green belt, playground or other public facility with a value over $100,000. The 
report and recommendation of the commission shall be based upon the comprehensive plan, 
coastal zone management plan and the capital improvements program. 

Plans for the construction of the new Borough facilities shall come to the 
commission for review and a public hearing at the conceptual state of design. At that 
time, the commission shall decide whether additional public hearings and design 
review are required at the 35%, 65%, and 95% stages of design. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF _________, 2016. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Janice Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:   __/__/__ 
Date of First Public Hearing:   __/__/__ 
Date of Second Public Hearing: __/__/__ 

Draft 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 9A



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 16-xx-xxx 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 12 to 
create a section on Borough Parks. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Section 4.   Amendment of Title 12. Title 12: Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places of the 
Haines Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

Title 12: Parks, Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places 

Chapters 

12.04    Street Grades 

12.08    Road and Sidewalk Construction, Maintenance, and Repair 

12.10    Driveways 

12.12    Building Numbering System 

12.16    Street and Sidewalk Use Restrictions 

12.20    Street Lights 

12.30 Parks 

12.40    Picture Point Park 

12.50    Chilkat River Beaches Recreational Zone.030.010 Definitions 

12.030.020 Borough Parks 

Chapter 12.30 Parks 

Sections: 

12.30.010 Definitions 

12.30.020 Borough Parks 

12.30.030 Regulations 

Draft 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 10B1



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 16-0x-xxx 

Page 2 of 2

Section 12.30.010 Definitions 

"Park" is a park, reservation, playground, beach, recreation 
area, scenic area, or any other area of the borough, owned or 
controlled by the borough, and devoted to active or passive 
recreation.   

"Camping" is the presence of any person sleeping in any motor 
vehicle or camper unit between the hours of midnight and 6am, 
or sleeping on the ground, with or without any shelter, sleeping 
pad, etc. between the hours of midnight and 6am on any land 
owned or controlled by the borough. 

Section 12.30.020 Borough Parks 

The following properties are designated as Haines Borough 
Parks: 

Tlingit Park, Tlingit Park Playground, Picture Point Park, 
Lookout Park, Oslund Park (ballfields and skate park), Emerson 
Field, George Mark Park, Library Totem Park, Tanani Point Park, 
Chilkat River Beaches Recreation Area, Carr's Cove Park, 
Skyline Park, Portage Cove Park. 

Section 12.30.030 Regulations 

A. Camping is prohibited except during special events approved 
by the Borough Manager. 

B. Camp fires may only be made in fire rings provided by the 
borough. 

C. Cutting trees, either live or dead, is prohibited. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF _________, 2016. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Janice Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:   __/__/__ 
Date of First Public Hearing:   __/__/__ 
Date of Second Public Hearing: __/__/__ 



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 16-09-xxx 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
Subsection 18.30.040(L) to adjust the comprehensive plan review frequency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.  

Section 4.   Amendment of Subsection 18.30.040(L).  Subsection 18.30.040(L) of the 
Haines Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

18.30.040 Planning commission.  

L. A comprehensive plan is a compilation of policy statements and maps for guiding the 
physical, social and economic development, both private and public of the borough, and may 
include, but is not limited to, the following: statements of policies, goals, standards, a land use 
plan, a lands classification plan and requirements for disposal of borough lands, a community 
facilities plan, a transportation plan, coastal development and management plan, and 
recommendations for plan implementations. The assembly shall be guided in the adoption of the 
comprehensive plan by the recommendations of the planning commission. The assembly may 
modify the plan, provided it first obtains the recommendations of the planning commission. The 
planning commission shall undertake the overall review of the plan at least once every two five 
years and shall present recommendations based on the review to the assembly. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF _________, 2016. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Janice Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:   __/__/__  
Date of First Public Hearing:   __/__/__ 
Date of Second Public Hearing: __/__/__ 

Draft 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 10B2



Chapter 18.80 
DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Proposed Revision 

Setbacks and Height Restrictions by Zone 

Zoning 

District 

Height 

Limit (in 

feet) 

Industrial Setbacks 

(in feet) *** 

Commercial 

Setbacks (in feet) 
Residential Setbacks (in feet) 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Residential 

Lots 

From 

Street or 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

I/H 35 * 0 50 0 0 N/A N/A N/A 

I/L/C 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

I/W 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

C 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

W 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

SSA 35 * ** N/A N/A 10 5 20 10 10 

SR 35 * N/A N/A N/A N/A 20 10 10 

MR 35 * N/A N/A 0 0 20 10 10 

RR 35 * N/A N/A 0 0 20 10 10 

RMU 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

MU 35 * 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

REC 35 * N/A N/A N/A N/A 20 10 10 

GU N/A 20 10 20 10 20 10 10 

Page 1/29

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 10C1



Setbacks and Height Restrictions by Zone 

Zoning 

District 

Height 

Limit (in 

feet) 

Industrial Setbacks 

(in feet) *** 

Commercial 

Setbacks (in feet) 
Residential Setbacks (in feet) 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Residential 

Lots 

From 

Street or 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

MBRR**** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 25 

LUTAK 

RR***** 

35 * N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 10 10 

* May exceed 35 feet limitation only by provisions of a conditional use permit granted by the planning

commission. 

**    May be up to 40 feet under the provisions of a conditional use permit granted by the planning 

commission, but only if for a replica building replacing a building of that height that has been destroyed, 

and if all special provisions of the historic district and all other provisions of this title are met. 

***    As long as all requirements of the state fire code or other applicable regulations are met. 

****    The Chilkat State Park Road right-of-way is exempt from the setback requirements. 

*****    Exception: Properties located along the Lutak Spur road (from the Chilkoot River bridge to the end of 

the road) where there will be no minimum setback along the road front right-of-way. Setbacks will apply 

for all other property lines along the Lutak Spur road. 

    Buildings constructed to zero lot line must be designed so that snow falling from the roof is not deposited 

on adjacent properties. 

    The distance between unattached buildings must be 15 feet unless approved as a conditional use by the 

planning commission. Building separation is intended for public safety; fire-related concerns must meet 

the approval of both the State Fire Marshal and local fire department, where applicable. The 15-foot 

separation between unattached buildings applies only when at least one of the buildings is for human 

occupancy. 

Page 2/29



    Setbacks from anadromous fish streams: See HBC 18.60.010(P). 

    Between Second Avenue and the intersection of Union Street and Main Street, all structures must be set 

back 20 feet from lot lines adjacent to Union Street. Due to its historical nature, Block 16, Haines Townsite 

Subdivision shall have special setbacks. All structures built within Block 16 must be set back a minimum 

of 10 feet from any property lines not abutting Union Street. 

    If a publicly owned road easement exists inside of a property line, the setback shall be measured from the 

easement line and not the property line. 

    If a public utility easement exists inside of a property line, the setback shall be measured from the 

easement rather than the property line and shall be not less than 10 feet unless a variance is granted by 

the planning commission. 

(Ord. 16-03-431 § 5; Ord. 13-12-358 § 4; Ord. 13-05-328 § 4; Ord. 12-09-303 § 4; Ord. 11-03-259 § 4; Ord. 10-09-

239 § 4; Ord. 09-04-203 § 4) 

Page 3/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1860.html#18.60.010


Chapter 18.80 
DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

18.80.010 Introduction. 

The following are the requirements governing density of development, building height, setback requirements for 

buildings from lot lines, and parking. In calculating the number of dwelling units allowed on a lot or the number 

of parking, loading or storage spaces required, the manager shall round fractional units above two up to the 

next whole number if that fraction equals or exceeds 0.5. (Example: four units are required if the density 

calculating yields 3.50 units. If the density calculation yielded 3.48 units, only three units would be required). 

18.80.020 Building density. 

Maximum lot coverage is 70 percent unless a variance is granted by the planning commission. Where a 

multiple residential building provides complete accommodation for two to four dwelling units, the density shall 

be limited to eight dwellings per acre. At the discretion of the commission, higher density may be allowed, up to 

a maximum allowable density of 18 dwelling units per acre. 

18.80.030 Setbacks and height. 

A. Setbacks are measured from the outermost portion of the building to the nearest lot line or building as 

appropriate. Incidental architectural features such as window sills, cornices and eaves may not project into any 

required setback. This regulation also applies to cantilevered floors, decks or other similar building extensions. 

No building or structures may be located within a setback, except that fences may be constructed within the 

required setback by permit. The following items shall be exempt from setback requirements, provided the item 

is located to achieve its purpose without constituting a hazard to vehicles or pedestrians, is located such that it 

does not obscure sight angles at intersections or driveways, and is not in any location prohibited by state 

regulation: 

1. Driveways and culverts that meet Chapter 12.08 HBC;

2. Parking areas that meet Chapter 10.44 HBC;

3. Satellite dishes;

4. Signs that meet Chapter 18.90 HBC;

5. French drains, culverts, or similar infrastructure;

Page 4/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough12/HainesBorough1208.html#12.08
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough10/HainesBorough1044.html#10.44
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1890.html#18.90


6. Public utilities; and

7. Fences outside of the townsite service area.

Where more than one setback standard is applicable, the most restrictive setback standard applies. 

B. Building height is measured from the grade plane to the highest point on the building, but not including 

chimneys, radio antennas, water towers, church spires, structures or enclosures constructed primarily for 

mechanical equipment and similar building mechanical features. 

Setbacks and Height Restrictions by Zone 

Zoning 

District 

Height 

Limit (in 

feet) 

Industrial Setbacks 

(in feet) *** 

Commercial 

Setbacks (in feet) 
Residential Setbacks (in feet) 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Residential 

Lots 

From 

Street or 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

I/H 30 * 0 50 0 0 N/A N/A N/A 

I/L/C 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

I/W 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

C 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

W 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

SSA 30 ** N/A N/A 10 5 20 10 10 

SR 30 N/A N/A N/A N/A 20 10 10 

MR 30 N/A N/A 0 0 20 10 10 

RR 30 N/A N/A 0 0 20 10 10 

RMU 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

MU 30 0 50 0 0 20 10 10 

Page 5/29



Setbacks and Height Restrictions by Zone 

Zoning 

District 

Height 

Limit (in 

feet) 

Industrial Setbacks 

(in feet) *** 

Commercial 

Setbacks (in feet) 
Residential Setbacks (in feet) 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Residential 

Lots 

From 

Street or 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

From 

Street Lot 

Lines 

From 

Alley Lot 

Lines 

From 

Other Lot 

Lines 

REC 30 N/A N/A N/A N/A 20 10 10 

GU N/A 20 10 20 10 20 10 10 

MBRR**** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 25 

LUTAK 

RR***** 

35 N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 10 10 

* May exceed 30 feet only by provisions of a conditional use permit granted by the planning commission.

**    May be up to 40 feet under the provisions of a conditional use permit granted by the planning 

commission, but only if for a replica building replacing a building of that height that has been destroyed, 

and if all special provisions of the historic district and all other provisions of this title are met. 

***    As long as all requirements of the state fire code or other applicable regulations are met. 

****    The Chilkat State Park Road right-of-way is exempt from the setback requirements. 

*****    Exception: Properties located along the Lutak Spur road (from the Chilkoot River bridge to the end of 

the road) where there will be no minimum setback along the road front right-of-way. Setbacks will apply 

for all other property lines along the Lutak Spur road. 

    Buildings constructed to zero lot line must be designed so that snow falling from the roof is not deposited 

on adjacent properties. 

    The distance between unattached buildings must be 15 feet unless approved as a conditional use by the 

planning commission. Building separation is intended for public safety; fire-related concerns must meet 

the approval of both the State Fire Marshal and local fire department, where applicable. The 15-foot 

Page 6/29



separation between unattached buildings applies only when at least one of the buildings is for human 

occupancy. 

    Setbacks from anadromous fish streams: See HBC 18.60.010(P). 

    Between Second Avenue and the intersection of Union Street and Main Street, all structures must be set 

back 20 feet from lot lines adjacent to Union Street. Due to its historical nature, Block 16, Haines Townsite 

Subdivision shall have special setbacks. All structures built within Block 16 must be set back a minimum 

of 10 feet from any property lines not abutting Union Street. 

    If a publicly owned road easement exists inside of a property line, the setback shall be measured from the 

easement line and not the property line. 

    If a public utility easement exists inside of a property line, the setback shall be measured from the 

easement rather than the property line and shall be not less than 10 feet unless a variance is granted by 

the planning commission. 

(Ord. 16-03-431 § 5; Ord. 13-12-358 § 4; Ord. 13-05-328 § 4; Ord. 12-09-303 § 4; Ord. 11-03-259 § 4; Ord. 10-09-

239 § 4; Ord. 09-04-203 § 4) 

Page 7/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1860.html#18.60.010


City and Borough of Sitka 

Chapter 22.20 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Table 22.20-1 

Development Standards(2)  

MINIMUM LOT 

REQUIREMENTS MINIMUM SETBACKS MAXIMUM HEIGHTS(19) 

MAXIMUM 

BUILDING 

COVERAGE 

MAXIMUM 

DENSITY 

ZONES Width Area(1, 18) Front(3) Rear Side 

Principal 

Structures 

Accessory 

Structures 

P (4) (4) 20 ft. 15 ft. 10 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. 35% 

SF(16) 80 ft. 8,000 s.f. 20 ft.(8) 10 ft.(9) 8 ft. 35 ft.(10) 16 ft. 35% 

SFLD 80 ft. 15,000 s.f. 20 ft.(8) 20 ft.(9) 15 ft. 35 ft.(10) 16 ft. 35% 

R-1(6, 16) 80 ft. 8,000 s.f. 20 ft.(8) 10 ft.(9) 8 ft. 35 ft.(10) 16 ft. 35% 

R-1 

MH(6, 16) 

80 ft. 8,000 s.f. 20 ft.(8) 10 ft.(9) 8 ft. 35 ft.(10) 16 ft. 35% 

R-1 LD/ 

LDMH 

80 ft. 15,000 s.f.(5) 20 ft.(8) 20 ft.(9) 15 ft. 35 ft.(10) 16 ft. 35% 

R-2(6, 16) 80 ft. 8,000 s.f. for 

the first two 

units and 

1,000 s.f. for 

each 

additional 

unit 

20 

ft.(8) 

10 ft.(9) 8 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. 50% Maximum 

density = 

24 DU/A 

R-2 

MHP(6) 

80 ft. Same as R-

2 

20 

ft.(8) 

10 

ft.(9) 

8 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. 50% Same as R-

2 

Page 8/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.254
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.254


Chapter 22.20 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Table 22.20-1 

Development Standards(2)  

MINIMUM LOT 

REQUIREMENTS MINIMUM SETBACKS MAXIMUM HEIGHTS(19) 

MAXIMUM 

BUILDING 

COVERAGE 

MAXIMUM 

DENSITY 

ZONES Width Area(1, 18) Front(3) Rear Side 

Principal 

Structures 

Accessory 

Structures 

CBD(17) None None(7) (11) (11) (11) 50 ft. 16 ft. None 

C-1(6) 60 ft. 6,000 s.f.(7) 20 ft.(8) 10 ft. 5 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. None, except 

for setback 

areas 

C-2(6) 60 ft. 6,000 s.f.(7) 20 ft.(8) 10 ft. 5 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. Same as C-1 

WD(6) 60 ft. 6,000 s.f.(7) 20 ft.(8, 

12)

5 ft.(12) 10 ft.(12) 40 ft. 16 ft. Same as C-1 

GP 50 ft. 5,000 s.f. 10 ft. 5 ft.(12) 10 ft.(12) 50 ft. 50 ft. Same as C-1 

I 100 ft. 15,000 s.f. 20 ft.(8) 10 ft. 5 ft. 40 ft. 16 ft. 50%(13) 

LI None 1 acre(14) None(15) None(15) None(15) 35 ft. 35 ft. 25% 

GI None 1 acre None(15) None(15) None(15) 35 ft. 35 ft. None 

R (16) (16) 20 ft. 10 ft. 5 ft. 35 ft. 20 ft. 50% 

OS None 1 acre None(15) None(15) None(15) 35 ft. 35 ft. None(15) 

(Ord. 13-14A § 4 (part), 2013; Ord. 11-04S § 4(B) (part), 2011; Ord. 06-06 § 4(C), 2006; Ord. 03-1746 § 4 

(part), 2003; Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.035 Notes to Table 22.20-1.

Page 9/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.254
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730


1. Minimum lot area net of access easements.

2. All developed lots and parcels shall have access to a public street and circulation within the development

to ensure adequate vehicular circulation for parking, freight, and emergency vehicles. Where lots or parcels do 

not front on and have direct access to streets, a minimum twenty-foot improved driveway with a minimum of a 

twelve-foot wide developed driveable surface on a legal easement shall provide access between the subject 

development and the street.  

3. Front setbacks apply to all lot lines adjacent a public street. Corner lots have two front setbacks.

4. As determined by the specific use and its parking and loading requirements.

5. Duplex shall have a minimum of twelve thousand square feet of lot area per unit.

6. Zero lot line lots shall be a minimum of seven thousand five hundred feet in area.

 Additional Note: The minimum square footages for each unit of a zero lot line shall be as follows: 

 R-1 and R-1 MH 4,000 sq. ft. 

 R-1 LD and R-1 LDMH 7,500 sq. ft. 

 R-2 and R-2 MHP 4,000 sq. ft. 

 C-1, C-2 and WD 3,000 sq. ft. 

    Zero lot lines may be allowed on existing lots of record in the R-1 and R-1 MH zones with square footages 

less than above if the planning commission finds that there is adequate density and parking. 

7. Minimum lot area per dwelling unit shall be six thousand square feet for one and two-family dwellings with

an additional one thousand square feet for each additional dwelling unit. 

8. Front yard setback shall be ten feet when lots abutting street rights-of-way are equal to or greater than

eighty feet. 

9. Residential docks are exempt from rear yard setback.

10. Except as exempted by Section 22.20.050.

Page 10/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.495
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.560
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.500
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.495
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.560
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.254
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.495
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.300
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.870
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.880
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2220.html#22.20.050


11. Subject to site plan approval.

12. No setbacks are required from property lines of adjacent filled, intertidal, or submerged tidelands.

13. Additional building coverage may be permitted subject to site plan approval.

14. Unless the subject use occupies the entire island.

15. Where island lots share common property lines, the minimum setback shall be fifteen feet.

16. The minimum site setback on lots in zones SF, R-1, R-1 MH, and R-2 shall be five feet for lots that are

sixty feet wide or narrower; in all other cases in those zones, the minimum side setback shall be eight feet. 

17. A five-foot setback shall be along any property line abutting a public street, alley, or deed access

easement. The purpose of this setback shall be to assure that sidewalks, curb and gutter, power pole locations, 

or other public necessities can be accommodated. 

18. Lot size variances may be allowed for subdivisions that include sidewalks or pathways.

19. Accessory dwelling units in residential zones shall be limited to a maximum height of twenty-five feet or

the height of the existing principal dwelling unit on the property whichever is less. 

(Ord. 13-14A § 4 (part), 2013; Ord. 06-06 § 4(C), 2006; Ord. 03-1746 § 4 (part), 2003; Ord. 02-1683 § 4 

(part), 2002.) 

22.20.038 Residential demolition guarantee.

Two residential structures may be allowed on one lot in an R-1 and R-2 or related zone upon the execution of a 

binding financial guarantee that insures and provides a vehicle for the demolition and removal of the older 

residence at the owner’s expense. Residential demolition guarantees may be permitted in single-family SF and 

related zone if approved through the conditional use process. (Ord. 13-34 § 4, 2013: Ord. 06-06 § 4(D), 2006; 

Ord. 03-1746 § 4 (part), 2003.) 

Table 22.20-2 

Access and Road Development Requirements for Minor Subdivisions 

Page 11/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.744
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.797
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.744
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.850
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.320
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.210
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.787


Minimum Lot 

Size 

Single-

Family/ 

Duplex/ 

Zero Lot 

Line 

Bed and 

Breakfast 

5 Guest 

Rooms or 

Less 

Triplex and 

Above 

Bed and 

Breakfast 

Over 5 

Guest 

Rooms Lodge Retail 

Office with 3 

or More 

Nonfamily 

Employees 

R-1 and related 

zones 

8,000 s.f. 8,000 s.f. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

R-2 and related 

zones 

8,000 s.f. 8,000 s.f. 9,000 s.f. + 1,000 

addition 

N/A N/A N/A Conditional 

use 

Low density 

zones 

15,000 s.f. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Commercial 

zones 

6,000 s.f. 6,000 s.f. 6,000 s.f. + 1,000 

addition 

6,000 s.f. 6,000 

s.f. 

6,000 

s.f. 

6,000 s.f. 

Minimum Road Development Requirements for Primary Roads in Easements 

Basic minimum: 

 Width—20 ft. 

 Room for drainage 

 No maximum grade 

Options for Road Development for Multifamily and Commercial Structures in All Zones (developers can 

choose which standard to use) 

1. Width—20 ft. or more

Room for drainage

Developed lanes—one 10 ft. wide driving lane

Maximum grade—15%

2. Lane/grade trade-off option:

Up to 18% grade with 1-1/2 driving lanes (15 ft. driveable surface with additional room for drainage easement)

3. Development to public right-of-way standard

(Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

Page 12/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.440
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.440
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.440
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.440
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.485
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.645
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.254
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.190


22.20.040 Yards and setbacks.

The following regulations supplement, define and restrict the meaning of the intent of yard and setback 

provisions set forth in this chapter: 

A.    Projections into Required Yards. Where yards are required as setbacks, they shall be open and 

unobstructed by any structure or portion of a structure from thirty inches above the general ground level of the 

graded lot upward; provided, however, that fences, boundary walls, poles, posts and other customary yard 

accessories, ornaments and furniture may be permitted in any yard subject to height limitations and 

requirements limiting obstruction visibility. Obstructions shall include cantilevered stairs and exits, as well as 

eaves and roofed entrances. Ramps are considered allowable structures in required yards if they: 

1. Are designed to provide access to a road, sidewalk, or driveway for disabled persons.

2. Have a slope or grade that can be traversed by disabled persons in wheelchairs.

3. Have a railing consistent with American/Disabilities Act (ADA) standards.

4. Do not include an arctic entry or other extension of the building that encroaches into the

yard in a manner that violates the other provisions of this title. 

B.    Adjoining Lease Tidelands. Yard setback requirements of leased tidelands shall be measured from the 

limits of the leased area. If, at the end of the lease term, the leaseholder should not renew the lease, then any 

nonconforming structures shall be removed unless the tidelands are brought under the control of the 

municipality or a new lessee, at which time conformance to normal yard and setback requirements shall be 

required. 

C.    Residential Lots in Common Ownership. An owner of contiguous or adjacent lots may combine those lots 

if approved by the planning director into one parcel, thereby measuring lot coverage and setbacks from the 

outside boundaries of the new combined lot. The impact of the use or number of residential units shall not 

exceed those previously allowed on a single parcel. In cases where these impacts may be greater than 

originally intended, the planning director may refer the matter to the board of adjustment for further review 

under the provisions of Section 22.24.020. Should the property owner revoke the merger either by a declaration 

of merger or by conveyance of one or more of the affected lots, setback and coverage requirements will again 

be measured from and by the original boundaries. 

Page 13/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.797
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.797
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.797
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2224.html#22.24.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.240


D.    Zero lot line single-family detached residential developments are permitted as planned unit developments 

under Title 21 of this code subject to site plan review. In this type of development, the dwelling unit is permitted 

to be located at one of the side property lines of the lot. The other side of the dwelling is required to be 

separated from the adjacent lot by a side yard equal to or greater in width than the combined side yard 

requirements of the zone. Provisions for front and rear yard setbacks as required by the zone shall be 

observed, further: 

1. An easement shall be provided on the abutting lot adjacent to each zero lot building that is

wide enough to ensure a ten-foot separation between the walls of structures on adjoining lots, 

except as provided by common wall construction; 

2. The easement shall be free of permanent structures and other obstructions that would

prevent normal repair and maintenance of the structure’s exterior; 

3. Buildings utilizing reduced setbacks shall not have doors that open directly onto the private

yards of abutting property. Windows in such buildings shall not be oriented toward such private 

yard areas unless they consist of materials such as glass block, textured glass, or other 

translucent materials, and shall not be capable of being opened, except for clerestory windows 

or skylights;  

4. The final plat and site plan shall show the approximate location of buildings proposed to be

placed in a standard setback area. 

(Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.045 As-built requirements.

As-built surveys may be required through the building permit approval process, consistent with municipal 

policies, to verify the requirements of this code. (Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.050 Building height.

A.    Building height shall be measured from the average finished grade to the highest point of the roof. The 

average grade shall be determined by first drawing the smallest square or rectangle which encloses the 

building profile and then averaging the grade elevations taken at the midpoint of each side of the square or 

rectangle; provided, that the measured elevations do not include berms. Figure 22.20.050 below illustrates this 

method. The administrator or his designee shall have the authority to determine the maximum allowable height 

Page 14/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.690
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka21/Sitka21.html#21
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.744
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.280
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.890
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.890
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.880
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.330
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.744
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.730
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110


of a structure for buildings with unusual designs with the owner retaining the right of appeal to the planning 

commission and the assembly in accordance with Chapter 22.30, Article VI. 

Figure 22.20.050 

Building Height Measurement 

B.    Exempted Structures. Roof structures for the housing of fire- or smokestacks, tanks, ventilating fans 

required to operate and maintain the building and other necessary mechanical equipment may be erected 

above the permitted height provided nothing increases or provides additional floor space.  

(Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.055 Communications antennas and towers.

Communications antennas and towers are permitted accessory uses within the R-1, R-1 MH, R-1 LDMH, R-2 

and R-2 MHP zoning districts as long as the tower or antenna does not exceed the allowable height of 

structures allowed within the specific district. If ground-mounted, guy wires shall not exceed the property on 

which the antenna/tower is located. In all cases, towers and antennas shall be structurally sound and properly 

constructed. Any request for a tower or antenna exceeding the height limits of the zoning district shall require a 

variance. (Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.060 Permitted home occupations.

Occupations conducted within a dwelling unit shall be permitted accessory uses in the districts specified under 

Chapter 22.16; provided, that: 

A.    The use of the dwelling unit for purposes of a home occupation is clearly incidental to its primary purposes 

as a residence. The occupation shall be conducted solely by the resident of the unit. Examples of home 

Page 15/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2230.html#22.30
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.042
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.830
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.042
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.042
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.042
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.850
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.830
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2216.html#22.16
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.310
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.450
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.450


occupations include cosmetic or other catalog sales, custom work for sale at a proper retail location, 

dressmaking, massage therapists, beauty salons, music teacher, jewelry manufacturing, pottery and art 

products. Beauty salons are limited to only one chair. 

B.    No home occupation is to generate traffic in greater volume than would be customarily found in a dwelling 

or create noise, glare, vibration, fumes, odors or electrical disturbance detectable off the lot in which it is 

conducted. 

C.    There shall be no modifications to the exterior of the building or premises or other major visible evidence 

of the conduct of a home occupation other than the one sign no larger than two square feet in area as 

permitted in Section 22.20.090.  

D.    It shall not utilize over twenty percent of the floor area of principal structures located along the road 

system. Up to fifty percent of the floor area of principal structures may be utilized for properties in the GI and LI 

zones with allowances for that percentage to be exceeded on an occasional basis as long as adjacent 

properties are not adversely impacted.  

(Ord. 12-31A § 4(H), 2012: Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

22.20.070 Fences, walls and hedges.

Property line fences and walls not exceeding eight feet in height may occupy any portion of a yard in residential 

districts except as provided in Section 22.20.080; and also provided, that such fence, wall or hedge projecting 

forward of the front yard setback line shall not obstruct visibility of the residence from the street. Fences in the 

public, commercial, and industrial districts may be no greater than twenty feet in height. Maximum fence height 

in the C-2 general commercial and mobile home district is eight feet. (Ord. 05-03 § 4(B), 2005; Ord. 04-60 

§ 4(N), 2004.)

22.20.080 Visibility at intersections.

On corner lots, no fence, wall or hedge or other planting or structure that will impede visibility between a height 

of two feet six inches and eight feet above the centerline grades of the intersecting streets shall be erected, 

planted, placed or maintained. On-street parking within thirty feet of any intersection is prohibited. If the 

relationship of the surface of a corner lot to the street is such that visibility is already impaired, nothing shall be 

done to increase the impediment to visibility within the thirty feet mentioned above.  

Page 16/29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.450
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.280
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.450
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.736
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2220.html#22.20.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.380
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.380
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.720
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/html/Sitka22/Sitka2220.html#22.20.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.870
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.190
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.462
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.370
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.190
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.590
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.500
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.780
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.500
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Sitka/cgi/defs.pl?def=22.08.770


Figure 22.20.080 

Intersection Visibility

(Ord. 02-1683 § 4 (part), 2002.) 

Page 17/29



City of Cordova 

• 18.16.020 - Building height limit.

The maximum building height in the C district shall be two and one-half stories but shall not exceed 
thirty-five feet; provided, that agricultural buildings may be erected to a height not to exceed fifty feet. 

(Prior code § 15.203(B)).  

• 18.32.040 - Building height limit.

There shall be no building height limit in the I district. 

(Prior code § 15.206(D)).  

• 18.36.040 - Building height limit.

There is no building height limit in the IR district. 

(Prior code § 15.207(D)).  

• 18.16.020 - Building height limit.

The maximum building height in the C district shall be two and one-half stories but shall not exceed 
thirty-five feet; provided, that agricultural buildings may be erected to a height not to exceed fifty feet. 

(Prior code § 15.203(B)).  

• 18.28.020 - Building height limit.

The maximum building height in the B district shall be three stories or fifty feet; provided, however, 
that a building or structure thereafter erected, added to or otherwise constructed may be increased in height, 
provided the gross cubical content of such building or structure does not exceed the sum total of the area of 
the lot upon which it is to be erected multiplied by fifty.  

(Prior code § 15.205(C)) 

• 18.24.020 - Building height limit.

The maximum building height in the R medium density district shall be three and one-half stories but 
shall not exceed forty-five feet. 

(Prior code § 15.204.2(B)).  

• 18.34.080 - Maximum height of buildings and structures.

The following are the maximum heights of buildings and structures in the WHD. 

A.  

Page 18/29



Principal buildings and structures: Seventy-five (75) feet. 
B. 

Accessory buildings and structures: Fifty (50) feet. 
C. 

The planning and zoning commission may grant conditional use permits for taller buildings subject to 
requirements of the uniform building code and the policies in the Cordova coastal management 
plan regarding the maintenance of visual access to coastal waters.  

(Ord. 866 (part), 2000: Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

Page 19/29



Presented by: The Manager 
Introduced: 09/13/2004 
Drafted by: M.H. Boggs 

ID. Pernula 

ORDINANCE OF THE  CITY  AND  BOROUGH OF JUNEAU, ALASKA 

Serial  No. 2004-13 

An Ordinance  Amending  Title 49 Regarding  Exceptions  to 
Yard Setbacks  and  Amending  Definitions  in  the Land Use 
Code. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU, ALASKA: 

Section 1. Classification. This  ordinance  is  ofa  general  and  permanent  nature 
and  shall become a part of the City and Borough code. 

Section 2. Amendment of Section. CBJ 49.25.400, Minimum  dimensional 
standards,  is  amended to read: 

49.25.400 Minimum dimensional  standards. 
There  is  adopted  the  table of minimum  dimensional  standards,  table 49.25.400. 

Minimum  dimensional  standards for all zoning districts  shall be according to  the 
table of minimum  dimensional  standards,  subject to the  limitations of the following 
sections and as otherwise specifically noted  in  the special area or use  sections, 
chapters 49.60 and 49.65. 

Page 20/29



M 
ri 

0 
0 
c.l 

N 

Page 21/29



Section 3. Amendment of Section. CBJ 49.25.430, Yardsetbacks,  is  amended 
to read: 

49.25.430 Yard setbacks. 
No portion of any of the  items  listed  in  subsection (1) of this section may be 

located on any  lot closer to any lot line or to the  street right-of-way  line or centerline 
than is  authorized  in  the  table of dimensional  standards  in  table 49.25.400, except 
as  otherwise  noted in this section. An alley  or  walkway  is not subject to front 
setbacks  unless  it  is  the  primary access to the lot. 

Buildings, as building  is defined in 49.80.120, and  the following items: 

(A) Motor vehicle fuel  dispensing  pumps  and  associated  overhead canopies 
or roofs; 

(B) Carports; 

(C) Radio and television antennas,  masts  and towers  (including 
telecommunications  towers), any of which are 25 feet or greater  in 
height or 25 square feet or greater in area  at  the base or foundation;  and 
dishes  greater  than five feet  in  diameter;  and 

(D) Above ground  fuel  and  water  storage  tanks  with  a volume greater  than 
660 gallons. 

Street right-of-way  line determined.  The  street  right-of-way line shall be 
determined by reference to  a recorded  map, monuments, right-of-way 
easements,  right-of-way  maps, or other  means.  The  setback  shall be 
measured from such  right-of-way  line. 

Multiple Frontage  lots. Buildings on lots  bordered by two or more rights-of- 
way must meet the  front  yard  setback from one lot  line  adjoining the  rights- 
of-way. Setbacks from the  remaining lot lines  adjoining  rights-of-way will 
be considered street side yards. 

On undeveloped  corner  lots or corner  lots  on which existing  buildings 
conform to required  setbacks,  the  owner  may  establish  the  rear  yard 
opposite either  right-of-way  frontage.  The  remaining  yard(s) not fronting 
on a street  right-of-way will  be considered a side yard(s). 

On lots  with  existing  buildings that have nonconforming setbacks,  setbacks 
for yards  shall be established  based on the  yard  that most closely meets  the 
respective  setback requirement. 

Lots  bordered by three or more rights-of-way  shall not be required to  
provide a  rear  yard  setback. 

A  front  yard for a lot not bordered by a  right-of-way  shall be established on 
the lot  line  where access is provided t o  the lot. 

-3- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 22/29



(4) Projections  into  required yards. 

(A) Architectural  features.  Architectural  features  and roof eaves may 
project into  a  required  yard  four  inches for each foot of yard  setback 
required  but no closer than two feet to the side and  rear lot  lines. 

(B) Enclosures. Bay windows, garden windows, chimney and  ventilation 
shafts,  and  other  similar enclosed structures  that do not  increase  the 
building’s floor area may project four  feet into  any  required  yard 
provided that  the maximum  length of projection along the building does 
not exceed 15 lineal  feet for any one yard. In no instance  shall  the 
projecting structure be closer than  three  feet to a lot  line. 

(C) Structures  unheated.  The following unheated  structures  are allowed in 
required  yard  setbacks,  as provided below, and provided that roof eaves 
associated  with  these  structures may be  no closer than two feet to any 
side or  rear lot line. 

(i) Unenclosed  balconies,  connecting deck stairways,  walkways,  ramps 
and  landmgs  with or without roofs, may extend to the  front lot line 
or street side lot lines  provided the  structure does not exceed five 
feet  in  internal  width exclusive of support  structure  and  is no 
closer than  three  feet to a side or rear lot line; 

(ii) Arctic entries not exceeding 65 square  feet  gross floor area,  and no 
closer than five feet to any  property  line; 

(iii) ,,Enclosures for outdoor  fuel  tanks,  detached  storage  sheds, 
greenhouses,  playhouses,  refuse  containers, woodsheds, and  similar 
accessory buildings, if less than four  feet  high in  a  front  or  street 
side yard  and  ten  feet  high  in  a side yard,  and 12 feet  high in  a  rear 
yard.  The  total  encroachment  into a yard,  regardless of the  number 
of encroaching  buildings, shall be  no more than 40 square feet in  a 
front  yard, 65 feet  in  a  side  yard,  and 120 square  feet  in  a  rear  yard. 
Where a structure is located in more than one setback,  the more 
restrictive  standards  shall  prevail.  In no instance  shall  the 
enclosure be closer than  three  feet to  a lot line; 

(iv) Temporary  boat or recreational vehicle shelters consisting of a 
plastic,  canvas  or  similar cover material  applied to a  frame for 
winter  storage provided that  the cover and  associated framework 
are removed during  the period of April 15 through  September 30 
and provided that  the  shelter  is no closer than  three  feet to a lot 
line; 

(v) Other  enclosures, devices, structures or accessories  deemed by the 
director to  be similar to a  building or to those  other  items  listed  in 
this subsection. 

-4- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 23/29



(D) Uncovered  porch, terrace, or patio. An uncovered  porch,  terrace, or 
patio  extending no more than 30 inches above the finished  grade may 
be  no closer than  three feet to a side lot line  and no closer than  ten feet 
to  a  front,  street side  or rear lot line. 

(E) Unenclosed  porches or decks. Unenclosed first  story  porches  or  decks, 
with or without roof, and  with or without  non-sight  obscuring  safety 
rails  less  than 44 inches  in  height, may project no more than six feet 
into  any  yard  setback, provided, however,  such projection is no closer 
than five feet to a lot  line.  Eaves  may  project  a  maximum of three feet 
from these  structures. 

(F) Sloping  lots. If the  natural  gradient of a sloping  lot, from front to rear, 
exceeds 25 percent,  the  front  yard  setback  shall not be less than  the 
established  yard of a dwelling, not  including accessory structures, such 
as garages and storage  buildings, which occupies an adjoining  lot. In no 
instance  shall  the  setback be less than five feet. 

(G) Shoreline  properties.  In  any zoning district,  yard  setbacks  are not 
required from tidewater lot lines. 

(H) Carports  and  garages. A minimum  setback of five feet from any 
property  line  shall apply to  carports  and  garages  in any residential 
zoning  district if: 

(i) The  topography of the lot makes  construction  a  hardship; 

(ii) The  carport or garage  has  a  maximum  height of 17 feet  measured 
from the  finished  garage floor level, instead of from the  datum 
established  in 49.25.420(b), and  a  maximum gross floor area of 600 
square  feet; 

(iii) Sight  distance  is  approved by the  director;  and 

(iv) Enclosed  space  directly under  the garage shall be subject to the 
above setback exception, and no additional  stories  are allowed on 
top of the  garage. 

(I)  Parking decks. A parking deck, no part of which exceeds one foot above 
the level of the adjoining  roadway, and which does not include other 
uses, is exempt from the  setback  requirements of this  chapter; provided 
a  non-sight-obscuring  safety  rail  not more than 42 inches  in  height  is 
allowed. 

(J) Substandard lots. If the lot width, lot depth, or  both  are less than 
required,  the corresponding  side  or rear  setbacks may be reduced to the 
same  percentage that  the lot width,  depth, or both,  bear to the zoning 
district  requirements, except that  in no case shall  the side and  rear 
yard  setbacks be less than half  those required by this  chapter, or five 
feet,  whichever  is greater. 

-5- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 24/29



(K) Existing  substandard  setbacks. A new building  may  have  a  front  yard 
setback  equal to the  average  front  yard  setback of the  three closest 
adjacent buildings.  The  average  calculation shall be made  using one 
building per  lot. If any of the  three buildings  used in  the  averaging 
calculation  is  located a  greater  distance from the  required  setback,  then 
the  required  front  yard  setback  shall be used to calculate  the  average. 

An existing  building  located on the subject  lot may be used as one of the 
three buildings to calculate  the  setback  determination. 

For  purposes of this section, the buildings  used in  averaging  must be 
either conforming or legally nonconforming enclosed buildings  or 
carports  and have a wall or column height of at  least seven  feet 
measured from the finished grade.  Porches, bay windows and 
temporary  buildings allowed to project  into setbacks  cannot be used for 
averaging. In no instance  shall  the  required  setback be less than half 
that  required by this  chapter or ten  feet, whichever  is greater. 

If there  are fewer than  three buildings  within five hundred  feet of the 
subject  property,  then  the  required  setback  shall be the  average of front 
yard  setbacks of such fewer buildings,  using  a  maximum of one building 
per lot. 

(L) Fences  and  vegetation.  For  this  section  a  “traveled way” is defined as 
the edge of the roadway  shoulder or the curb  closest to  property. 

(i) , The  maximum  height of a  sight  obscuring fence or  vegetation  shall 
not exceed four feet  within 20 feet of the edge of the  traveled way. 
Trees  are allowed within 20 feet of the edge of the  traveled way 
provided they do not obscure view from a  height of four feet to a 
height of eight  feet above the  ground; 

Ill 

If 

ll 

ll 

ll 

/ I  

/I 

/I 

/I 

-6- Ord. 2004-13 

Page 25/29



I 

i 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
1 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 

- 7- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 26/29



Ill 

I1 

I1 

I/ 

I1 

I1 

I1 

/I 

It 

/I 

/I 

I1 

I1 

I1 

I1 

I1 

/I  

I1 

/I 

/I 

I/ 

(ii) On corner  lots  the maximum  height of a  sight-obscuring fence or 
vegetation located  within 20 feet of a  street  intersection  shall not 
exceed three  feet. The area  in which sight-obscuring fences and 
vegetation  is  restricted  shall be determined by extending  the edge 
of the  traveled ways to a  point of intersection,  then  measuring back 
20 feet,  then connecting the  points.  In  this  area,  vegetation  shall be 
maintained to  a maximum height of three  feet.  Trees  are allowed 
in  this  area provided the  trees do not  obscure view from a  height of 
three to eight  feet above the  ground. 

-8- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 27/29



Front Yxd Fences &Vegetation 

\ 3’  Height 

-9- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 28/29



(M) Additional  stories.  The commission, through  the conditional  use permit 
process,  may allow the  addition of a second or third  story  atop or below 
an existing enclosed structure which projects into  a  required  yard 
setback if the  structure  is  either lawfully nonconforming or if a  variance 
was  previously granted for the  structure.  The commission may deny 
such  request if it  finds  that  the  structure,  with  the  addition, would 
result  in excessive blockage of views, excessive restriction of light  and 
air, or other  deleterious  impacts. 

(N) Parcels  adjoining publicly owned land.  The commission, through  the 
conditional  use  permit process, may allow structural projections  into 
required side or rear  yard  setbacks if the affected yard adjoins publicly 
owned land which has been placed in  a  park, open space, or similarly 
restrictive  land  management  classification;  provided  such projections 
are minimized and  are  necessary to prevent  substantial  hardship to the 
applicant.  The commission may deny such  requests if it finds  that  the 
structure,  with  the  adhtion, would result  in excessive blockage of 
views, excessive restriction of light and  air, or other  deleterious 
impacts. 

Replacement  and  reconstruction of certain nonconforming buildings.  The 
replacement  and reconstruction of certain nonconforming buildings in 
residential  districts  in Downtown Juneau  and Downtown Douglas as 
designated on the geographic area  map  shall be governed by subsection 
49.30.500(b) 

Section 4. Amendment of Section. CBJ 49.80.120  Definitions,  is  amended by 
the  addition of the following definitions to be incorporated  in  alphabetical  order: 

49.80.120 Definitions. 

right-of-way,  other than  an alley or the  front lot line. 
Lot line,  street side, means  the  property  line  separating  the lot from a  street 

Yard,  street  side,  means  a  yard  extending  the full  width of the lot between  any 
building and  the  street side lot line,  and  measured  perpendicular from the property 
line to the  building at  the closest point to the  street side  lot  line. 

Section 5.  Effective  Date. This  ordinance  shall be effective 30 days  after  its 
adoption. 

Adopted this 27th day of September, 2004. 

- 10- Ord. 2004- 13 

Page 29/29



Page 1/2 

A Resolution of the Haines Borough Planning Commission in support of the public 
planning process established by the Charter of Haines Borough and Haines 
Borough Municipal Codes. 

WHEREAS, the people of Haines Borough, exercising the powers of home rule granted by the 
Constitution of the State of Alaska established the Haines Borough Charter; 

WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Charter 8.01 (A) authorizes The Haines Borough Planning 
Commission as the sole planning body of the borough, guided by the comprehensive plan; 

WHEREAS, a planning effort should involve a broad segment of the population to assure that 
all community groups are heard; 

WHEREAS, achieving consensus is a vital aspect of community planning and it is only when 
differing viewpoints and values are brought together that true planning takes place; 

WHEREAS, consensus in this context means the formulation of goals to which a majority (or 
more) of the community will agree; 

WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Charter 8.03 authorizes the Planning Commission to formulate 
and develop planning proposals for submission to the assembly whenever requested to do so by 
the assembly or upon its own motion; 

WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Charter 8.03 authorizes the Planning Commission to gather 
information and inform the public at hearings on planning matters, promote public interest and 
understanding of the comprehensive plan; 

WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Charter 8.03 authorizes the Planning Commission to plan for 
borough capital improvements and land sales; 

WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 18.10.020 states the Planning Commission Purpose is to 
ensure that growth and development of the borough is in accord with the values of its residents; 

WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 18.10.020 states the Planning Commission Purpose is to 
identify and secure, for present and future residents, the beneficial impacts of growth; 

WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 18.10.020 states the Planning Commission Purpose is to 
identify and avoid the negative impacts of growth; 

WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 18.10.020 states the Planning Commission Purpose is to 
ensure that growth is a type, design and location that conforms to community standards, and is 
served by a proper range of public services and facilities; 

WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 18.10.020 states the Planning Commission Purpose is to 
achieve the goals and implement the policies of the Haines Borough comprehensive plan; 

PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 10B3



Page 1/2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that it is the intent of the Haines Borough Planning 
Commission to fully support the public planning process that has been established by the Haines 
Borough Charter and Haines Borough Code and will act within its authority to formulate and 
develop planning proposals for submission to the assembly, whenever requested to do so by the 
assembly, or upon its own motion, and will gather information and inform the public at hearings 
on planning matters, and will promote public interest and understanding of the comprehensive 
plan, and will plan for borough capital improvements and land sales. 

Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Planning Commission on this the 
13th day of October, 2016. 

_________________________________________ 
Robert Goldberg, Planning Commission Chairman 

Attest: 

_____________________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 



PC PACKET 10-13-2016
# 12A



creekside CABIN

HC 60, Box 6120
Haines, AK 99827
907 766 3318
creeksidecabin494@gmail.com
everystorylies.com

Sept 28, 2016

TO: Haines Planning Commission  
cc: Holly Smith, Haines Borough Planner 1

from: Linda Moyer

RE: Zoning and denial of inquiry for property subdivision of Block 5 of 
the Anway Five Acre Garden Tracts on Sunshine Street

On August 29, 2016 I submitted an inquiry regarding the possibility of subdividing my 
1.25 acre property which I purchased in September 2000 when it was zoned multi-
use. After an initial review of Borough code by Holly Smith, I was informed that the 
zoning on Sunshine Street is Rural Residential and that no lot can be less than ONE 
acre.

[Per Haines Borough Code 18.70.030(A)(9): Rural Residential Zone. The intent of the rural 
residential zone is to provide areas for low-density, single-residential, and agricultural uses along 
with limited, compatible, low-impact commercial uses. The zone has a minimum lot-size of one 
acre. This zone is intended for areas where development trends, limited transportation and utility 
systems and physical features indicate the appropriateness of a low intensity use.]

I would like to point out that of the 19 lots on Sunshine Street (see attached) only 
five properties meet that criteria, one of which is mine. In addition, five of the lots 
are populated by mobile homes, and one is home to a yurt which can be 
disassembled and quickly moved. Regarding "utility systems," Sunshine Street has had 
both water and sewer availability since I purchased my property in 2000.

I don't know how the zoning designation of Rural Residential was decided but it 
appears as if no one reviewed the current lot subdivisions, visited the street to see 
what kinds of homes exist on the lots, nor inquired whether water and sewer is 
available. In my estimation, the zoning designation does not reflect the existing 
conditions.

Holly informed me that the Commission denied me the opportunity to apply for a 
variance as well as to place a tiny home on my property. However, given the existing 
conditions of the neighborhood and the fact that nearly 75% of the properties do 
not meet the current zoning criteria, I believe that I should be allowed to subdivide 
and build a "guest house."  

from the desk of

LINDA

MOYER

Attachments
• Zoning graphic
• Original inquiry
• Holly's subdivision
graphic

Page 1/6
PC PACKET 10-13-2016

# 12B



!"#$!"#$!"#$!%&$!"#$!'%$!'%$%!()$!()$!()$!()$!()$

!*)$ !%&$ !'+$ !'($

,!%($ ,!%($ ,!%($ ,!%($

,!%($ ,!%($ ,!%($,!%($

!'($!'+$!"+$!"'$

!',$ !""$

!%)$

!,&$
!"+$

!"+$

-..$/0121$.3/2$!%%$

432/$35$/0121$.3/2$!%%$

!"#$%

&'()*+%
,'-+%

&'()*+%
,'-+%

&'()*+%
,'-+%

&'()*+%
,'-+%

&'()*+%,'-+%

MOYER

Page 2/6



creekside CABIN

HC 60, Box 6120
Haines, AK 99827
907 766 3318
creeksidecabin494@gmail.com
everystorylies.com

August 29, 2016

TO: Haines Borough Planner

from: Linda Moyer

RE: Inquiry regarding potential sub-division of property

Attached is the original re-subdivision of Block 5 of the Anway Five Acre Garden 
Tracts and an architectual drawing of my cabin on the property. I own Lot 1 and 
would like to sub-divide my property along the line of the drainage that cuts 
through the property. I believe that a 10,000 sq. foot or .22 acre lot (minimum 
size lot allowed in the neighborhood) can be created. My purpose is to sell my 
home and then build a small home on the smaller lot. 

My property is zoned multi-use and allows for a single-family home and a guest 
cottage of less than 700 sq. feet. The existing house is only 685 sq. feet. I would 
like to know if this is possible before hiring a surveyor.

from the desk of

LINDA

MOYER

Page 3/6



Page 4/6



Page 5/6



Holly Smith 
prepared this 
suggested 
subdivision for 
me using the 
Borough's 
program.

Page 6/6


	4[DRAFT] PC 09-08-16 Minutes
	7aOctober 13 2016 Staff Report
	7b[TEMPLATE MARKUP] Action Summary Review 2016
	1. Quality of Life
	2. Haines Borough Government
	3. Economic Development
	4. Transportation
	5. Land Use & Future Growth
	6. Parks, Recreation, and Open Space
	7. Utilities
	8. Public Safety
	9. Community Services
	10.  Education

	7cAssignments of Phase I Action Summary Review 2016
	8a1Nelson-Appeal
	8a2PC_10-13-2016_Appeal_Schnabel_Supporting-Docs
	8a2Schnabel-Appeal
	8a3Waterhouse-Appeal
	8a4Haines Borough_Harbor Expansion_ALL-DOCUMENTS_9-8-2016
	Haines Borough_Harbor Expansion Application_8-29-16
	Army Corps._Haines Section 408PN Permit Request
	Dept. of Army POA-2005-1976 1st Trns
	POA-2005-1976 Permit.pdf
	DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY PERMIT

	NOTIFICATION OF  ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS.pdf
	NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND 
	REQUEST FOR APPEAL
	Randal Vigil




	8a018.30.050
	9aRewrite-ORD_16-01-429_PC-Meeting_Oct13-2016
	HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA
	STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED
	18.30.040 Planning commission.


	10b1Rewrite-ORD_16-xx-xxx_PC-Meeting_Oct13-2016_PARKS
	HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA
	STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED
	Title 12: Parks, Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places
	Chapters
	12.08    Road and Sidewalk Construction, Maintenance, and Repair
	12.10    Driveways
	12.12    Building Numbering System
	12.16    Street and Sidewalk Use Restrictions
	12.20    Street Lights
	12.30 Parks
	12.40    Picture Point Park
	12.50    Chilkat River Beaches Recreational Zone.030.010 Definitions
	12.030.020 Borough Parks


	10b2ORD_16-xx-xxx Title 18 Comp Plan Review Frequency
	10d1Josephson-Height Restrictions-ALL
	Chapter 18 Building Height Proposed Revision
	Chapter 18.80 DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	Proposed Revision

	Chapter 18 Building Height
	Chapter 18.80 DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	18.80.010 Introduction.
	18.80.020 Building density.
	18.80.030 Setbacks and height.


	City and Borough of Sitka - Building Heights
	22.20.035 Notes to Table 22.20-1./
	22.20.038 Residential demolition guarantee./
	22.20.040 Yards and setbacks./
	22.20.045 As-built requirements./
	22.20.050 Building height./
	22.20.055 Communications antennas and towers./
	22.20.060 Permitted home occupations./
	22.20.070 Fences, walls and hedges./
	22.20.080 Visibility at intersections./

	Cordova Building Heights
	Juneau Building Height

	10d3Josephson - Proposed Resolution - Support of the Public Planning Process
	12aChamber-of-Commerce-9-16-2016
	12bCorrespondance_LindaMoyer



